
8 June 2015 Agenda 
Page 1 of 5 

 

 

 
AGENDA 

Henderson City Council Regular Meeting  
Monday 8 June 2015, 6:00 p.m. 

R. G. (Chick) Young, Jr. Council Chambers, Municipal Building 
134 Rose Avenue 

Henderson, North Carolina 
     

 
 
Mayor and City Council Members 
Mayor James D. O’Geary, Presiding 

 
Councilmember James C. Kearney, Sr.  
Councilmember Sara M. Coffey 
Councilmember Michael C. Inscoe 
Councilmember D. Michael Rainey 

 

 
Councilmember Brenda Peace-Jenkins  
Councilmember Garry D. Daeke 
Councilmember Fearldine A. Simmons 
Councilmember George M. Daye 
 

City Officials 
Edward A. Wyatt, Interim City Manager 
D. Rix Edwards, City Attorney 
Esther J. McCrackin, City Clerk 
 
I. CALL TO ORDER 
 
II. ROLL CALL 

 
III. INVOCATION AND PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

 
IV. OPENING REMARKS 

 
In order to provide for the highest standards of ethical behavior and Transparency in Governance 
as well as provide for good and open government, the City Council has approved Core Values 
regarding Ethical Behavior1 and Transparency in Governance2.  The Mayor now inquires as to 
whether any Council Member knows of any conflict of interest, or appearance of conflict, with 
respect to matters before the City Council.  If any Council Members knows of a conflict of 
interest, or appearance of conflict, please state so at this time. 

                                                 
1 Core Value 4:  Ethical Behavior:  We value the public trust and will perform our duties and 
responsibilities with the highest levels of integrity, honesty, trustworthiness and professionalism. 
 
2 Core Value 10:  Transparency in Governance:  We value transparency in the governance 
and operations of the City. 
 



8 June 2015 Agenda 
Page 2 of 5 

 

 
V. ADJUSTMENTS TO AND/OR APPROVAL OF THE AGENDA 

 
VI. APPROVAL OF MINUTES 

 
a) 11 May 2015 Regular Meeting [See Notebook Tab 1 
b) 18 May 2015 Special Called Meeting 
c) 19 May 2015 Special Called Work Session 
d) 21 May 2015 Budget Work Session #1 
 

VII. PUBLIC HEARING – Continued 
 
a) Consideration of Approval of Ordinance 15-12, Rezoning Certain Property at 456 

Spring Valley Road from R-20, Low Density Residential, to RA, 
Residential/Agricultural Use. (CAF 15-31-A) [See Notebook Tab 2] 

 
  ● Public Hearing  
  ● Ordinance 15-12 
 

VIII. PUBLIC HEARING - New 
  
a) Consideration of Approval of Ordinance 15-19, Amending the Zoning Ordinance to 

Include Design Standards on Solar Farms and Add Section 675B Solar Farms and 
Section 1002 to the City Zoning Code.  (CAF 15-44)  [See Notebook Tab 3] 

 
  ● Public Hearing 
  ● Ordinance 15-19 
 
b) Consideration of Approval of Ordinance 15-27, Text Amendment Removing Solar 

Farms Use 20.7 in Residential Agricultural (RA) Zoning Districts.  (CAF 15-67)  [See 
Notebook Tab 4] 

   
  ● Public Hearing  
  ● Ordinance 15-27 
 
c) Consideration of Approval of Ordinance 15-05, Amending the Zoning Ordinance 

Section 310A Table of Permitted Uses to Allow Schools with a Special Use Permit in 
the I2 District.   (CAF 15-60)  [See Notebook Tab 5] 

 
  ● Public Hearing  
  ● Ordinance 15-05 



8 June 2015 Agenda 
Page 3 of 5 

 

 
IX. PUBLIC COMMENT PERIOD ON AGENDA ITEMS 

 
Citizens may only speak on Agenda items at this time.  Citizens wishing to address the 
Council must sign-in on a form provided by the City Clerk prior to the beginning of the 
meeting.  The sign-in form is located on the podium. When recognized by the Mayor, 
come forward to the podium, state your name, address and if you are a city resident.  
Please review the Citizen Comment Guidelines that are provided below.3 
 

X. NEW BUSINESS 
 

a) Consideration of Approval of Resolution 15-41, Approving in Concurrence with 
NCDOT the Bid Award to the Lowest  Responsible Bidder for the Chavasse 
Widening Project and the Funding of $87,000 for the Excess Expenses over the 
Estimated Cost of $700,000 (WBS Element: 38404).  (CAF 15-69)  [See Notebook 
Tab 6] 

 
  ● Resolution 15-41 
 
b) Consideration of Approval of Ordinance 15-29, FY15 Budget Amendment #29 

Amending the General, Water, Sewer and Regional Water Funds to Reflect the 
Reimbursement to the City by Builders Mutual Insurance Company for Repairs to a 
Damaged Water Main.  (CAF 15-68)  [See Notebook Tab 7] 

 
  ● Ordinance 15-29 
 
c) Consideration of Approval of Ordinance 15-31, FY15 Budget Amendment #30, 

Closing Out the 2013 BJA Bulletproof Vests Grant, the 2014 BJA Grant, and the 
2014 Governor’s Crime Commission Viper/MDT Upgrade Project Grant.  (CAF 15-
71)  [See Notebook Tab 8] 

 
● Ordinance 15-31 

 
d) Consideration of Approval of Resolution 15-30-A, Accepting an Offer of $10,000 for 

the Property Known as the Old City Garage Pursuant to N.C.G.S.§160A-269.  (CAF 
15-49-A)  [See Notebook Tab 9] 

 
  ● Resolution 15-30-A 
 

                                                 
3 Citizen Comment Guidelines for Agenda Items 
The Mayor and City Council welcome and encourage citizens to attend City Council meetings and to offer comments on matters of concern to 
them.  Citizens are requested to review the following public comment guidelines prior to addressing the City Council. 
1)  Citizens are requested to limit their comments to five minutes; however, the Mayor, at his discretion, may limit comments to three minutes 
should there appear to be a large number of people wishing to address the Council;  
2)  Comments should be presented in a civil manner and be non-personal in nature, fact-based and issue oriented.  Except for the public hearing 
comment period, citizens must speak for themselves during the public comment periods;  
3)  Citizens may not yield their time to another person;  
4) Topics requiring further investigation will be referred to the appropriate city official, Council Committee or agency and may, if in order, be 
scheduled for a future meeting agenda;  
5)  Individual personnel issues are confidential by law and will not be discussed.  Complaints relative to specific individuals are to be directed to 
the City Manager;  
6)  Comments involving matters related to an on-going police investigative matter and/or the court system will not be permitted; and  
7)  Citizens should not expect specific Council action, deliberation and/or comment on subject matter brought up during the public comment 
section unless and until it has been scheduled as a business item on a future meeting agenda. 
 



8 June 2015 Agenda 
Page 4 of 5 

 

e) Consideration of Approval of Resolution 15-39, Authorizing an Application for U.S.   
Department of Justice’s 2015-2016 BJA Justice Assistance Grant. (CAF 15-66) [See 
Notebook Tab 10] 

  
  ● Resolution 15-39 
 
f) Consideration of Approval of Resolution 15-46, Authorizing the Execution of a 

Quitclaim Deed for Property Outside City Limits Recorded in Error as Jointly 
Owned City/County Property.  (CAF 15-78)  [See Notebook Tab 11] 

 
  ● Resolution 15-46 
 
g) Consideration of Approval of Resolution 15-42, Issuing Sewer Credit for Outside 

Watering of Lawns, Plants and Vegetation for the June 1, 2015 through October 31, 
2015 Billing Statements.  (CAF 15-42)  [See Notebook Tab 12] 

 
  ● Resolution 15-74  

 
XI. PUBLIC COMMENT PERIOD ON NON-AGENDA ITEMS 

 
Citizens may only speak on Non-Agenda items at this time.  Citizens wishing to address 
the Council must sign-in on a form provided by the City Clerk prior to the beginning of 
the meeting.  The sign-in form is located on the podium. When recognized by the Mayor, 
come forward to the podium, state your name, address and if you are a city resident.  
Please review the Citizen Comment Guidelines that are provided below.4 
 

XII. REPORTS 
 
a) Mayor/Mayor Pro-Tem  
b) City Manager  
c) City Attorney 
d) City Clerk 

i. Meeting and Events Calendar [See Notebook Tab 13] 
ii. Monthly Fire Department Report 

                                                 
4 Citizen Comment Guidelines for Non-Agenda Items 
The Mayor and City Council welcome and encourage citizens to attend City Council meetings and to offer comments on matters 
of concern to them.  Citizens are requested to review the following public comment guidelines prior to addressing the City 
Council. 
1)  Citizens are requested to limit their comments to five minutes; however, the Mayor, at his discretion, may limit comments to 
three minutes should there appear to be a large number of people wishing to address the Council;  
2)  Comments should be presented in a civil manner and be non-personal in nature, fact-based and issue oriented.  Except for the 
public hearing comment period, citizens must speak for themselves during the public comment periods;  
3)  Citizens may not yield their time to another person;  
4) Topics requiring further investigation will be referred to the appropriate city official, Council Committee or agency and may, 
if in order, be scheduled for a future meeting agenda;  
5)  Individual personnel issues are confidential by law and will not be discussed.  Complaints relative to specific individuals are 
to be directed to the City Manager;  
6)  Comments involving matters related to an on-going police investigative matter and/or the court system will not be permitted; 
and  
7)  Citizens should not expect specific Council action, deliberation and/or comment on subject matter brought up during the 
public comment section unless and until it has been scheduled as a business item on a future meeting agenda. 
 



8 June 2015 Agenda 
Page 5 of 5 

 

 
XIII. CLOSED SESSION 

 
a) Pursuant to G.S.§143-318.11 (a)(6) regarding a Personnel Matter 

 
XIV. ADJOURNMENT   



 

 
Minute Book 43 

11 May 2015 Regular Meeting Minutes  
Page 1 of 7 

 City Council Minutes - DRAFT 
Regular Meeting 

11 May 2015 

 
PRESENT 
 
Mayor James D. O’Geary, Presiding; and Council Members James C. Kearney, Sr., Sara M. 
Coffey, Michael C. Inscoe, D. Michael Rainey, Brenda Peace-Jenkins, Garry D. Daeke, 
Fearldine A. Simmons, and George M. Daye. 
 
ABSENT 
 
None. 
 
STAFF PRESENT 
 
Interim City Manager Edward A. Wyatt, City Attorney D. Rix Edwards,  City Clerk Esther J. 
McCrackin, Assistant City Manager Frank Frazier, Engineering Director Clark Thomas, Finance 
Director Kathy Brafford, Public Services Director Mike Ross, Recreation and Parks Director 
Kendrick Vann, Human Resources Director Cathy Brown, Kerr Lake Regional Water Director 
Christy Lipscomb and Development Services Director Corey Williams.  
 
CALL TO ORDER    
   
The 11 May 2015 Regular Meeting of the Henderson City Council was called to order by Mayor 
James D. O’Geary at 6:03 p.m. in the R. G. “Chick” Young, Jr. Council Chambers, Municipal 
Building, 134 Rose Avenue, Henderson, NC. 

            
ROLL CALL 
 
The City Clerk called the roll and advised Mayor O’Geary a quorum was present.   
 
INVOCATION AND PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
Council Member Simmons led those present in a prayer and the Pledge of Allegiance.   
 
OPENING COMMENTS 
 
Mayor O’Geary said he was pleased to see citizens in attendance this evening.  He added it is 
always good to have citizens come and learn. 
 
 
 



 

 
Minute Book 43 

11 May 2015 Regular Meeting Minutes  
Page 2 of 7 

 
ADJUSTMENTS TO/APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
 
Mayor O’Geary asked if there were any adjustments to the Agenda.  A Closed Session pursuant 
to G.S. §143-318.11(a)(6) for a Personnel Matter will be added to the agenda. Council Member 
Rainey moved to accept the Agenda as adjusted.  Motion seconded by Council Member Daye, 
and unanimously approved. 
 
APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
 
Mayor O’Geary asked for any corrections to and/or approval of the minutes.  Council Member 
Daeke moved to approve the 27 April 2015 Short Meeting and Work Session Minutes as 
presented.  Motion seconded by Council Member Simmons, and unanimously approved. 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT PERIOD ON AGENDA ITEMS 
 
The City Clerk advised the Mayor and Council Members that no citizen wished to address 
Council at this time.   
 
NEW BUSINESS 
 
Proposal to Accept a Negotiated Offer for a Portion of Said Parcel of Land Referred to as 
the Old City Garage Property and to Advertise for Upset Bids Per North Carolina G. S. 
§160A-269.  (Reference: CAF 15-49; Resolution 15-30) 
 
Interim City Manager Wyatt explained that the Land Planning Committee has met several times 
to consider an offer from Mr. Cameron Mitchell to purchase property known as the old City 
Garage.  The Committee agreed it would be beneficial to retain a portion of the parcel as the City 
uses it for storage of rock, excavated concrete and earthen material.  Mr. Mitchell is agreeable to 
purchasing only a portion of the lot which is approximately .960 acres, depending on a final 
survey.   An advertisement must be placed for upset bids prior to Council’s final approval of the 
sale. 
 
Council Member Daeke asked how the property is currently zoned.  Development Service 
Director Corey Williams said B2/B2-A. 
 
There were no other questions so Mayor O’Geary asked for the pleasure of Council. 
 
Council Member Rainey moved the approval of Resolution 15-30, Proposal to Accept a 
Negotiated Offer for a Portion of Said Parcel of Land Referred to as the Old City Garage 
Property and to Advertise for Upset Bids Per North Carolina G. S. §160A-269.  Motion 
seconded by Council Member Inscoe, and APPROVED by the following vote:  YES: Kearney, 
Coffey, Inscoe, Rainey, Daeke, Simmons and Daye. NO: None.  ABSTAIN:  None.  ABSENT:  
Peace-Jenkins.   (See Resolution Book 4, p 201) 
 
(Clerk’s Note:  Council Member Peace-Jenkins arrived at 6:09 p.m.) 



 

 
Minute Book 43 

11 May 2015 Regular Meeting Minutes  
Page 3 of 7 

 
Authorizing Change Order #1 for the High Service Pump Replacement Project in the 
Amount of $15,329.70 to Dellinger, Inc., for the Regional Water System, and Authorizing 
the Transfer of Contingency Funds for said Project. (Reference: CAF 15-63; Resolution 15-
37, Ordinance 15-26, Budget Amendment #28) 
 
Interim City Manager Wyatt said this change order is to rectify a situation with the size of the 
conduit that was intended to be used to house the VFD and Pump wiring which was found to be 
too small.  The original design did not include a larger conduit; thus the change order request. 
 
There were no questions.  Mayor O’Geary asked for Council’s pleasure. 
 
Council Member Coffey moved the approval of Resolution 15-37, Authorizing Change Order 
#1 for the High Service Pump Replacement Project in the Amount of $15,329.70 to Dellinger, 
Inc., for the Regional Water System, and Ordinance 15-36, Authorizing the Transfer of 
Contingency Funds for said Project..  Motion seconded by Council Member Inscoe, and 
APPROVED by the following vote:  YES: Coffey, Inscoe, Rainey, Peace-Jenkins, Daeke, 
Simmons, Daye, and Kearney.  NO: None.  ABSTAIN:  None.  ABSENT:  None.  (See 
Resolution Book 4, p 215, Ordinance Book 9, p 245 
 
Authorizing the Dedication and Acceptance of Sewer Mains Serving Building #10 on Vance 
Granville Community College Campus.  (CAF 15-28, Resolution 15-20) 
 
Interim City Manager Wyatt said Chandler Engineering has worked with the City and Vance 
Granville Community College to install a new sanitary sewer main and sewer services to provide 
sewer on the west side of Poplar Creek Road for the prescribed distances:  Building #10; 680 
feet, 8 inches.  The sewer mains have been constructed in accordance to the City’s construction 
standards and inspected.  The testing performed deemed the sewer mains acceptable and 
approval from DENR has been obtained.  A one year warranty will be placed on the system as a 
condition of acceptance by the City.   
 
There were no questions.  Mayor O’Geary asked for Council’s pleasure. 
 
Council Member Inscoe moved the approval of Resolution 15-20, Authorizing the Dedication 
and Acceptance of Sewer Mains Serving Building #10 on Vance Granville Community College 
Campus.  Motion seconded by Council Member Rainey, and APPROVED by the following vote:  
YES: Inscoe, Rainey, Peace-Jenkins, Daeke, Simmons, Daye, Kearney, and Coffey.  NO:  None.  
ABSTAIN:  None.  ABSENT:  None.  (See Resolution Book 4, p 181) 
 
Appointing the City Clerk as City Tax Collector for the Collection of Outstanding Privilege 
License Fees.  (CAF 15-65, Resolution 15-38) 
 
Interim City Manager explained it is the City Attorney’s recommendation that Council appoint 
the City Clerk as city tax collector in an effort to collect outstanding Privilege License Fees.   
 



 

 
Minute Book 43 

11 May 2015 Regular Meeting Minutes  
Page 4 of 7 

Council Member Rainey asked what the ramifications will be if the fees are uncollectable and 
how many years in arrears these fees can be collected.  City Attorney Edwards responded a tax 
levy can be placed on the property which can be removed and sold at public auction.  Attorney 
Edwards said there is no limitation on back years but Council could certainly set a specific time 
line. 
 
Council Member Coffey asked for a list of those in arrears, along with the amount due.  Mr. 
Wyatt said a listing would be made available to Council. 

 
There were no further questions.   Mayor O’Geary asked for Council’s pleasure. 
 
Council Member Coffey moved the approval of Resolution 15-38, Appointing the City Clerk as 
City Tax Collector for the Collection of outstanding Privilege License Fees.  Motion seconded 
by Council Member Daeke, and APPROVED by the following vote:  YES: Peace-Jenkins, 
Daeke, Simmons, Daye, Kearney, Coffey, Inscoe and Rainey.  NO:  None.  ABSTAIN:  None.  
ABSENT:  None.  (See Resolution Book 4, p 217) 
 
CONSENT AGENDA 
 
The City Clerk read the Consent Agenda, summarized as follows: 
 
Amended Fee Schedule to Include Fire Hydrant Meter Usage Fees Relative to the Policy 
for the Usage of Fire Hydrant Meters.  (CAF 15-26, Ordinance 15-09, Budget Amendment 
#27)  This action allows the Public Services Department to impose fees to reflect the correct 
prices for the rental, as well as the usage, of Fire Hydrant Meters used in conjunction with  the 
purchase of bulk water by any person(s), firm(s), or corporation(s) other than the City of 
Henderson on a regular or occasional basis. 
 
Tax Releases and Refunds from Vance County for the Month of April 2015. (Reference:  
CAF 14-27).  This is a routine matter which has been reviewed and approved by the Finance 
Director, and is listed below. 
 

 



 

 
Minute Book 43 

11 May 2015 Regular Meeting Minutes  
Page 5 of 7 

Column1 Column2 Column3 Column4

April 2015Tax Releases & Refunds
Name Reason Tax Year Amount

Real & Personal Property
Releases
Dailey, Mary L Pers. Prop. Billed in Error 2010 34.78                    
Dailey, Mary L Pers. Prop. Billed in Error 2011 31.62                    
Dailey, Mary L Pers. Prop. Billed in Error 2012 34.78                    
Dailey, Mary L Pers. Prop. Billed in Error 2013 36.86                    
Carolina Quality Rent Correct Ownership 2014 (282.01)                
Vick, Jeffery Lee Correct Ownership 2014 282.01                  
Williams, Robert W Correct Value 2014 124.29                  
Total R&P Property Releases 262.33$                

Real & Personal Property
Refunds
None -                       

Total R& P  Property Refunds -$                     

Total R&P Prop. Rel. & Ref. 262.33$                 
Mayor O’Geary asked if anyone wished to remove an item from the Consent Agenda. There 
were no requests.  Mayor O’Geary asked for a motion to approve the consent Agenda  
 
Council Member Inscoe moved the approval of the Consent Agenda as presented.  Motion 
seconded by Council Member Daye, and APPROVED by the following vote:  YES: Rainey, 
Peace-Jenkins, Daeke, Simmons, Daye, Kearney, Coffey and Inscoe.  NO:  None.  ABSTAIN:  
None.  ABSENT: None. 
 
Council Member Coffey thanked Public Service Director Ross for establishing the hydrant meter 
fee policy. 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT PERIOD ON NON-AGENDA ITEMS 
 
The City Clerk advised the Mayor and Council Members that one citizen wished to address 
Council at this time.   
 
 Mr. Jon Davis, 9 Butterwick Place, Durham, NC  Mr. Davis is a developer of solar 
energy and wished to speak to Council about the technical aspects of solar.  He said solar will 
not endanger the community but will enhance the community as it produces electricity.  He said 
this is a way for farmers to diversify and felt solar will be here in the community for the long 
haul.  Mr. Davis ended by saying he felt solar has run into many negative road blocks and would 
like to make it work for this area. 
 
Mayor O’Geary thanked Mr. Davis for his comments. 
 
REPORTS 
 

a) Mayor/Mayor Pro-Tem – Mayor Pro-Tem Rainey was approached by a concerned citizen 
regarding the City parks.  The concern is locked parks; parks that are unsafe and lack 
play equipment such as slides and swings.  Mr. Rainey said he would like to see what can 
be done to make the parks safer.  Recreation & Parks Director Kendrick Vann said his 



 

 
Minute Book 43 

11 May 2015 Regular Meeting Minutes  
Page 6 of 7 

staff is currently assessing all the parks within the City.  He mentioned there are safety 
issues at Kings Daughter Park.  Mr. Vann said the web page is being updated to show 
present condition and anticipates gradual changes to make the parks safer. 
 
Mr. Rainey commended Mr. Vann for the progress he is making and suggested an article 
in the paper to promote the clean-up at Fox Pond Park so citizens would feel safer going 
there.   
 
Council Member Coffey asked if any local businesses have stepped forward to help make 
improvements  
 
Mayor O’Geary asked Mr. Vann to keep Council updated on his progress with 
improvements at the various parks. 
 

b) Interim City Manager  (No Report) 
c) City Attorney (No Report) 
d) City Clerk – (No Report)  

 
OTHER 
 
Council Member Peace-Jenkins commented on the National Day of Prayer saying it was the best 
turnout at City Hall that she had ever seen. 
 
CLOSED SESSION 
 
Council Member Rainey moved for Council to convene in closed session pursuant to G.S. §143-
318.11(a)(6) for a Personnel Matter.  Motion seconded by Council Member Inscoe and 
unanimously approved.  
 
Council Member Coffey moved for Council to convene in open session.  Motion seconded by 
Council Member Kearney, and unanimously approved.   
 
Before adjourning, Interim City Manager asked if Council would be agreeable to taking one 
meeting date set aside for budget discussions to hold a work session regarding solar farms.  It 
was the consensus of Council to meet on Tuesday, May 19, 2015 to discuss solar farms which is 
scheduled for a public hearing on June 8, 2015.   
 
With no further business Mayor O’Geary asked if Council was prepared to adjourn 
 
ADJOURNMENT 
 
Council Member Daye moved for adjournment.  Motion seconded by Council Member 
Simmons, and unanimously approved.  The meeting adjourned at 7:12 p.m. 
 
 
 



 

 
Minute Book 43 

11 May 2015 Regular Meeting Minutes  
Page 7 of 7 

 
____________________________ 
James D. O’Geary 
Mayor  
      ATTEST: 
 
 
      _____________________________ 
      Esther J. McCrackin 
      City Clerk 



Minute Book 43 
18 May 2015 Special Called Meeting (Budget Presentation) Minutes  

Page 1 of 3 
 

 
 

 City Council Minutes 
Special Called Meeting 

18 May 2015 

 
PRESENT 
 
Mayor James D. O’Geary, Presiding; and Council Members James C. Kearney, Sr., Sara M. 
Coffey, Michael C. Inscoe,  D. Michael Rainey, Brenda Peace-Jenkins, Garry D. Daeke, 
Fearldine A. Simmons and George M. Daye. 
 
ABSENT 
 
None 
 
STAFF PRESENT 
 
Interim City Manager Edward A. Wyatt, City Clerk Esther J. McCrackin, Assistant City 
Manager Frank Frazier, Finance Director Katherine C. Brafford,  Assistant Finance Director 
Michelle Daniels, Recreation & Parks Director Kendrick Vann, Youth Services Director Donna 
Stearns,  Development Services Director Corey Williams, Fire Chief Danny Wilkerson, Assistant 
Fire Chief Steve Cordell, Police Chief Marcus Barrow, Engineering Director Clark Thomas, 
Public Services Director Mike Ross, and Kerr Lake Regional Water Director Christy Lipscomb. 
 
CALL TO ORDER 
 
The 18 May 2015 Special Called Meeting of the Henderson City Council was called to order by 
Mayor James D. O’Geary at 6:00 p.m. in the R. G. “Chick” Young, Jr. Council Chambers, 
Municipal Building, 134 Rose Avenue, Henderson, NC. 

 
ROLL CALL 
 
The City Clerk called the roll and advised Mayor O’Geary a quorum was present.   
  



Minute Book 43 
18 May 2015 Special Called Meeting (Budget Presentation) Minutes  

Page 2 of 3 
 

 
NEW BUSINESS 
 
Presentation of Proposed FY 2013-2014 Budget 
 
Mayor O’Geary asked Interim City Manager Wyatt to begin the presentation.   
 
Mr. Wyatt thanked Council for the opportunity to present the proposed FY15-16 budget and said 
he would like to present an overview of the budget via a PowerPoint presentation. He thanked 
Assistant Finance Director Michelle Daniels for putting the presentation together and at this time 
he also recognized the entire budget team which consisted of Finance Director Kathy Brafford, 
Assistant City Manager Frank Frazier, Human Resources Director Cathy Brown and Executive 
Assistant Patricia Pearson.  The PowerPoint presentation is incorporated by reference and hereby 
made part of these minutes. 
 
Mr. Wyatt highlighted areas beginning with saying this proposed budget does not include any 
property tax or sanitation fee increase.  It does recommend a 5% increase for Regional Water, 
4% increase in the Water Fund and a 9% increase in the Sewer Fund. He said the total budget for 
FY15-16 is $37,942,000.  Mr. Wyatt said these increases would necessitate fee increases in the 
Fee Schedule.  He also pointed out this budget includes employee salary increases and the 
County’s increases in the City’s portion of E-911 and the Board of Elections. Specifically, he 
mentioned the current cost associated with the Workers’ Compensation deductible.  He touched 
on things like existing Debt Service and the need to use $325,000 of Fund Balance to balance the 
FY15-16 budget.  Mr. Wyatt recommended $10,000 for the Downtown Development 
Commission felt it would appropriate for Council to request certain actions by the Commission if 
the recommendation is approved. 
 
Mr. Wyatt purposefully drew Council’s attention to the General Fund which has a recommended 
budget of $15,397,900 which is less than FY14-15 current budget by .05%. Overall, the property 
tax rate remains at $.62 and the sales tax continues to remain flat.  Mr. Wyatt pointed out the 
City’s largest revenue sources do not cover the costs associated with the largest service areas:  
Public Safety, and Cultural and Public Services. 
 
Mr. Wyatt went on to say employees are being asked to continually do more with less and it will 
be no different in the coming year.  Chemical costs, gasoline expense and other routine costs to 
keep the City running are all anticipated to increase in the coming year. 
 
The loss of privilege license fees significantly reduced revenue although the General Assembly 
is looking at options to allow municipalities a method to re-coup at least some of these lost 
dollars.  Mr. Wyatt also referenced annexation saying there are many areas currently outside the 
city that would benefit from being annexed into the City. 
 
Another area of concern mentioned is that only $20,000 has been budgeted for the dilapidated 
and deteriorated housing stock. 
 
SUMMARY 



Minute Book 43 
18 May 2015 Special Called Meeting (Budget Presentation) Minutes  

Page 3 of 3 
 

 
A summary of the 4 major funds is as follows: 
 
 General Fund - $15,397,900 with no recommended property tax or sanitation fee increase  
 Regional Water Fund - $4,499,500 with a recommended 5% rate increase 
 Water Fund - $6,851,700 with a recommended 4% rate increase 
 Sewer Fund - $5,032,300 with a recommended 9% rate increase. 
 
The Kerr Lake Regional Water Advisory Board has approved the 5% increase. 
 
FUTURE 
 
On the brighter side, Mr. Wyatt found the Capital Improvements Plan (CIP) a step in the right 
direction as it will encourage growth; the City’s involvement with the Economic Development 
Commission and pending legislation regarding E-911 double taxation and sales tax laws may 
generate significant revenue if the General Assembly approves these measures. 
 
In conclusion, Mr. Wyatt thanked Council for their attentiveness during his presentation.  He 
again thanked the Budget Team and asked the City Clerk to distribute the Budget Workbooks, 
along with a tri-fold summary of the budget. 
 
Council Member Kearney asked for a copy of the PowerPoint presentation.  It was suggested the 
City Clerk place both the presentation and the tri-fold summary on the City’s web page. 
 
Mayor O’Geary asked if Council had any questions.  There was no further discussion so Mayor 
O’Geary asked if Council was prepared to adjourn. 
 
ADJOURNMENT 
 
Council Member Inscoe moved for adjournment.  Motion seconded by Council Member Rainey 
and unanimously approved.  The meeting adjourned at 7:08 p.m. 
 
 
 
____________________________ 
James D. O’Geary 
Mayor       ATTEST: 
 
      _____________________________ 
      Esther J. McCrackin 
      City Clerk 
 



Minute Book 43 
18 May 2015 Special Called Meeting Minutes  

Page 1 of 3 
 

 
 

 City Council Minutes 
Special Called Meeting 

19 May 2015 

 
PRESENT 
 
Mayor James D. O’Geary, Presiding; and Council Members James C. Kearney, Sr., Sara M. 
Coffey, Michael C. Inscoe,  Brenda Peace-Jenkins, Garry D. Daeke, Fearldine A. Simmons and 
George M. Daye. 
 
ABSENT 
 
Council Member D. Michael Rainey 
 
STAFF PRESENT 
 
Interim City Manager Edward A. Wyatt, City Attorney D. Rix Edwards, City Clerk Esther J. 
McCrackin, Assistant City Manager Frank Frazier, Development Services Director Corey 
Williams and Planner Robert Harris. 
 
CALL TO ORDER    
   
The 19 May 2015 Special Called Meeting of the Henderson City Council was called to order by 
Mayor James D. O’Geary at 6:00 p.m. in the R. G. “Chick” Young, Jr. Council Chambers, 
Municipal Building, 134 Rose Avenue, Henderson, NC. 

            
ROLL CALL 
 
The City Clerk called the roll and advised Mayor O’Geary a quorum was present.  The City 
Clerk also advised the format would change so the Closed Session could be held first. 
 
With no discussion, Mayor O’Geary asked if Council was prepared to go into Closed Session 
and stated there would be no report following the session. 
  



Minute Book 43 
18 May 2015 Special Called Meeting Minutes  

Page 2 of 3 
 

CLOSED SESSION 
 
Council Member Inscoe moved for Council to convene in closed session pursuant to G.S. §143-
318.11(a)(4) for an Economic Development matter. Motion seconded by Council Member Daeke 
and unanimously approved. 
 
Council Member Kearney moved for Council to convene in open session.  Motion seconded by 
Council Member Daye, and unanimously approved.  
 
Mayor O’Geary asked the Clerk to proceed. 
 
OLD BUSINESS 
 
Solar Farms Discussion 
 
Development Director Williams began the discussion by providing a brief timeline of the solar 
farm issue.  This came before the Planning Board in January.  Then in February it went before 
Council where the issue was remanded back to the Planning Board for further information.  
Since February there have been several Planning Board discussions, including a work session.  
Mr. Williams said on May 4th the Planning Board approved a Text Amendment to not allow solar 
farms in RA zoning districts. 
 
Mr. Williams then reviewed the draft ordinance which incorporates many points from the North 
Carolina Solar Energy Development template.  He pointed out the ordinance includes the 
following requirements:  1) site plan, 2) setbacks, 3) screening and fencing, 4) signage, 5) noise, 
6) transmission lines, 7) annual inspection, 8) decommissioning, 9) security bond, and 10) 
definition (size of components). 
  
Council Member Daeke felt the screening (live plants such as trees/hedges) should be at least 6 
feet on the first day rather than allowing the screening to grow over a period of three years.  
Council Members Kearney and Coffey agreed.   
 
Council Member Coffey has no problem with solar farms as long as they are screened and not in 
the middle of the City.   
 
Council Member Kearney brought up the issue of unsightly, bare spots as trees/hedges do die but 
felt solar farms are acceptable if kept from view of the public. 
 
Council Member Inscoe suggested a fee for the annual inspection and asked who would do the 
inspection.  Mr. Williams said his department would be responsible and after a brief discussion, 
$1,000 was suggested as the annual fee. 
 
After further discussion, the following restrictions were requested by Council. 
 



Minute Book 43 
18 May 2015 Special Called Meeting Minutes  

Page 3 of 3 
 

 8 foot screening required in RA with a process in place to replace the trees/hedges by the 
City at the expense of the property owner with the ability to enforce civil penalties  

 $1,000 annual inspection fee 
 Property owner responsible for upkeep 

 
There was then a discussion regarding what should be approved first by Council during the 
upcoming public hearing.  It was decided that the design standards would be approved first with 
the text amendment coming next. 
 
Mr. Williams then distributed a list of solar farms in the area along with applications at the State 
Clearing House. 
 
Council Member Coffey asked if the Clearing House list of solar farms indicates application has 
been made but no action has been taken.  Mr. Williams said that was correct. 
 
Mr. Williams asked for and received verification from Council regarding the sequence that they 
would like to consider these issues at the Public Hearing. The consensus was the sequence 
should be to continue the Public Hearing starting with the design regulations, then the rezoning 
and lastly the text amendment. 
 
There were no further questions so Mayor O’Geary asked if Council was prepared to adjourn. 
 
ADJOURNMENT 
 
Council Member Coffey moved for adjournment.  Motion seconded by Council Member Daye, 
and unanimously approved.  The meeting adjourned at 6:57 p.m. 
 
 
 
____________________________ 
James D. O’Geary 
Mayor       ATTEST: 
 
      _____________________________ 
      Esther J. McCrackin 
      City Clerk 
 



 

 
Minute Book 43 

21 May 2015 Budget Work Session #1 Minutes 
Page 1 of 4 

 
 
 

City Council Minutes 
Henderson City Council Budget Work Session #1 - DRAFT 

21 May 2015 

 
PRESENT 
 
Mayor James D. O’Geary, Presiding; and Council Members Sara M. Coffey, Michael C. Inscoe, 
D. Michael Rainey, Brenda Peace-Jenkins, Garry D. Daeke, Fearldine A. Simmons and George 
M. Daye. 
 
ABSENT 
 
Council Members James C. Kearney, Sr. 
 
STAFF PRESENT 
 
Interim City Manager Edward A. Wyatt, Assistant City Manager, Frank Frazier, City Clerk 
Esther J. McCrackin, Finance Director Katherine Brafford, Assistant Finance Director Michelle 
Daniels, Development Service Director Corey Williams, Recreation and Parks Director Kendrick 
Vann, Engineering Director Clark Thomas, Public Services Director Mike Ross, Fiscal 
Compliance Officer Edna Vaught and Kerr Lake Regional Water Director Christy Lipscomb. 
 
CALL TO ORDER    
   
The 19 May 2015 Henderson City Council Budget Work Session #1 was called to order by 
Mayor James D. O’Geary at 6:00 p.m. in the R. G. “Chick” Young, Jr. Council Chambers, 
Municipal Building, 134 Rose Avenue, Henderson, NC. 

            
ROLL CALL 
 
The City Clerk called the roll and advised Mayor O’Geary a quorum was present.   
 
OPENING REMARKS 
 
Mayor O’Geary welcomed everyone and said Council Member Inscoe would like to make a few 
remarks. 
 



 

 
Minute Book 43 

21 May 2015 Budget Work Session #1 Minutes 
Page 2 of 4 

Mr. Inscoe commended the Manager and staff for the budget presentation saying it was very 
concise.  He said he hoped all the Council has had an opportunity to review the materials.  
Personally, he found the information provided was very helpful in preparing Council to make 
decisions.  Mr. Inscoe is pleased there is no tax or sanitation increases.  His suggestion, which 
was agreed upon by Council, was to begin by asking each member for their concerns regarding 
the presented budget. 
 
GENERAL REVIEW AND DISCUSSION 
 
Concerns expressed were as follows:   
 Every Council Member express concerns regarding the funds set aside for demolition 

Council Member Coffey expressed concern regarding the proposed funding of the 
Downtown Development Commission.   
Council Member Inscoe asked for clarification regarding the proposed Sewer increase 
and asked what percent equaled debt service. 
Council Member Peace-Jenkins is pleased with the budget other than the demolition 
issue. 
Council Member Daeke had questions about the sewer increase and the cost increase with 
health insurance. 
Council Members Simmons and Daye had no questions other than demolition. 

 
Interim City Manager Wyatt said it is important for the City to maintain a broker to negotiate 
health insurance and from his past experience Mr. Wyatt has found Mr. Phil Burnett gives more 
service than normally provided. 
 
In reference to the demolition budget, Mr. Wyatt said he hears Council loud and clear, and 
agreed $20,000 is an insignificant amount.   
 
As far as the proposed salary increase, Mr. Wyatt reminded Council that this is a modification of 
the recommended Plan and even this has been reduced by delaying the increase by three (3) 
months.   He commented that more staff and better equipment is needed to maintain the expected 
level of service and commended the limited staff for its “can-do” attitude. 
 
Council Member Inscoe returned the discussion to demolition and asked if the $.50 increase in 
sanitation fees earmarked for demolition approved in the FY14-15 budget still exists.  If so, he 
asked how much that generates for demolition. The response was approximately $32,000.  He 
said his next suggestion would not make the Public Services Director happy but wondered if the 
Storm Sewer budget could be reduced by $30,000 to supplement the demolition budget. 
 
Council Member Daeke commented the $30,000 was an insignificant amount for storm water 
and wondered where the funds would come from for storm water if $30,000 was given to 
demolition. 
 
(Clerk’s Note:  Council Member Rainey arrived at approximately 6:30 p.m.) 



 

 
Minute Book 43 

21 May 2015 Budget Work Session #1 Minutes 
Page 3 of 4 

 
Council Member Coffey expressed concern regarding the FY14-15 expenses submitted by the  
Downtown Development Commission.  There was a brief discussion regarding the DDC with 
Development Service Director Williams sharing the Commission is currently working on several 
projects, including a possible grant application which would re-establish Main Street eligibility.  
Council Member Inscoe asked about the part-time position mentioned in conjunction with the 
grant and Mr. Williams responded the part-time position would need to become full time in the 
4th year of the grant.  Mayor O’Geary questioned about the sustainability of funding of a full 
time position. 
 
Council Member Inscoe turned the discussion back to demolition and asked about taking an 
additional $10,000 from Fund Balance.    Mr. Wyatt said he had no problem with this.  Council 
Member Daeke asked after the proposed funds are withdrawn from the Fund Balance what 
percent remains.  Finance Director Brafford responded approximately 29.88% 
 
Assistant City Manager Frazier respectfully asked Council to consider taking $10,000 from 
Street Resurfacing rather than Storm Water which was acceptable to Council. 
 
At this time Mayor O’Geary asked for the consensus of Council to take an additional $10, 000 
from Street Resurfacing, $10,000 from Fund Balance and specifically earmark $32,000 from 
sanitation fees to provide an additional $52,000 for demolition in FY15-16.  The consensus was 
as follows:  YES:  Coffey, Inscoe, Rainey, Peace-Jenkins, Daeke, Simmons and Daye.  NO:  
None.  ABSTAIN:  None.  ABSENT:  Kearney. 
 
In response to Council Member Inscoe’s question regarding the 9% increase in Sanitation, Mr. 
Frazier said that increase is 100% debt service.  Council Member Daeke commented that the 
proposed increase from FY14-15 was reduced last year and wondered about the necessary 
increase for next year’s budget.  Mr. Inscoe reminded all that the debt service regarding the 
recreation center will be removed next year. 
 
Discussion now turned to the increase in health insurance.  Following a brief discussion, Council 
Member Daeke said he spoke to Mr. Philip Burnette today who indicated the health insurance 
increase has been further reduced to a 14.9% increase.  Mr. Daeke asked staff for a breakdown of 
how this will impact the employee’s paycheck and also requested information on what the cost 
difference would be for a $1,500 deductible. 
 
Council Member Coffey asked if the insurance broker expense was bid out.  Mr. Wyatt said it 
was not and added other brokers would be more expensive from his experience.  Council 
Member Daeke said he has found jumping around ultimately does not save any in the long run. 
 
SUMMARY 
 
In conclusion, Council was agreed to add $52,000 to the demolition budget as described in the 
above consensus, and to cancel all budget meetings until the Public Hearing on June 15th. 



 

 
Minute Book 43 

21 May 2015 Budget Work Session #1 Minutes 
Page 4 of 4 

 
 
 
 
 
Mayor O’Geary asked if there was anything further or if Council was prepared to adjourn. 

 
ADJOURNMENT 
 
Council Member Coffey moved for adjournment.  Motion seconded by Council Member Peace-
Jenkins and unanimously approved.  The meeting adjourned at 6:56 p.m. 
 
 
 
 
____________________________ 
James D. O’Geary 
Mayor 
 
 
     ATTEST: 
 
 
     _____________________________ 
     Esther J. McCrackin 
     City Clerk 
  



CAF 15-31-A: 8 June 2015 Council Meeting: Public Hearing 
Page 1 of 22 

 

 
 
 
 
 

 
_______________________________________ 

 

20 February 2014 
 
 

TO: The Honorable Mayor James D. O’Geary and Members of City Council 
 
FR: Ed Wyatt, City Manager 
 
RE: CAF:  15-31-A: 

Consideration of Approval of Ordinance 15-12, Rezoning Certain Property at 456 
Spring Valley Road from R-20, Low Density Residential, to RA, 
Residential/Agricultural Use  

 
Ladies and Gentlemen: 
 
Council Retreat Goals Addressed By This Item: 
 
 Key Strategic Objective 3: Revise and align land use and sign ordinance. 

 
Recommendation: 
 
 Approval of Ordinance 15-12, Rezoning Certain Property at 456 Spring Valley Road from 

R-20, Low Density Residential, to RA, Residential/Agricultural Use. 
 
Executive Summary 

 
A rezoning application concerning 456 Spring Valley Road (Property) in Henderson, North 
Carolina (City) was submitted on January 12, 2015 by Spring Valley Farm, LLC (Petitioner).  
The application, as modified during a presentation to the City Planning Board (Board) by the 
Petitioner’s representative, requests approximately 40.60 acres of the Property be rezoned from 
R-20, Low Density Residential, to RA, Residential/Agriculture Use. The requester seeks the 
rezoning so it may apply for a special use permit to allow establishment of a solar farm.   The 
40.60 acres are within the City’s extraterritorial jurisdiction.   
 
The Board conducted a February 2, 2015, public hearing on the matter.  One person, who lives 
near the Property, spoke against the rezoning due to concerns regarding a solar farm’s potential 
impact on the value of surrounding properties, as well as the potential visual impact.  By a four-
to-one vote, the Board approved the request subject to final action by the City Council.  
 

City Council Action Form 
Office of City Manager 

P. O. Box 1434 
Henderson, NC  27536 

252.430.5701 

 
 
 
 
Council Meeting: 8 June 15 Regular Meeting 



CAF 15-31-A: 8 June 2015 Council Meeting: Public Hearing 
Page 2 of 22 

 

The City Council conducted a public hearing (February 23, 2015) on the matter of rezoning. 
After much discussion for the rezoning and opposition, City Council remanded this issue back to 
the Planning Board for a Special Meeting to establish design standards and for the Public 
Hearing to be continued until such time as the Planning Board presented those proposed 
standards back to Council. Council Action Form 15-44 and Ordinance 15-19 Amending the 
Zoning Ordinance to include Design Standards on Solar Farm is ready for City Council’s review 
and approval, and therefore Ordinance 15-12 (rezoning) awaits their decision. 
 
Attachments: 
 

1. Ordinance 15-12  
2. Planning Board Minutes 
3. Aerial Map Detailing Proposed Rezoning & Other information 
4. R 20 & R A Permitting Uses 



CAF 15-31-A: 8 June 2015 Council Meeting: Public Hearing 
Page 3 of 22 

 

 

ORDINANCE 15-12 
 
 
After receiving the recommendation of the City of Henderson, North Carolina (City) Planning 
Board, which was made following an advertised public hearing on the proposed rezoning, City 
Council Member ___________________________ introduced the following Ordinance, which 
was seconded by City Council Member ______________________ and reads: 
 
AN ORDINANCE REZONING A PART OF A TRACT OF LAND AT 456 SPRING VALLEY 

ROAD FROM R-20 (LOW DENSITY RESIDENTIAL) TO RA (RESIDENTIAL / 
AGRICULTURAL) USE 

 
The City Council ordains: 

 
Section 1: The City zoning map, as referenced in the City Code, be amended by rezoning 

40.60 acres of the land located at 456 Spring Valley Road, as noted in the attached survey map, 
and which is a portion of the land identified by the Vance County, North Carolina Tax Office by 
Property Identification Numbers 0207 01005, 0207 01008 and 0207 2002A.  
 
 Section 2.  This Ordinance shall be in full force and effect from the date of its passage. 
 

Ordinance 15-12, upon motion of Council member ____________ and seconded by 
Council Member __________________, and having been submitted to a roll call vote and 
received the following votes and was APPROVED/DISAPPROVED on this the ____ day of 
_______________, 2015:     YES:        . NO:      .  ABSTAIN:     .   ABSENT:      . 

 
 
 
       ____________________________________ 
       James D. O’Geary, Mayor 
 
ATTEST: 
 
_______________________________ 
Esther J. McCrackin, City Clerk 
 
 
 
Approved to Legal Form: 
 
________________________________ 
D. Rix Edwards., City Attorney 
 
 
 

CAF 15-31 
Attachment #1 



CAF 15-31-A: 8 June 2015 Council Meeting: Public Hearing 
Page 4 of 22 

 

 
_______________________________________ 
STATE OF NORTH CAROLINA 
CITY OF HENDERSON 
 
 
I, Esther J. McCrackin, the duly appointed, qualified City Clerk of the City of Henderson, do 
hereby certify the foregoing Ordinance is a true and exact copy of Ordinance 15-12, Rezoning a 
60.70+/- Acre tract located at 456 Spring Valley Road from R-20 (Low Density Residential) to 
RA (Residential /Agricultural District, adopted by the Henderson, City Council in Regular 
Session on **  ** 20** (See Minute Book 4*, p. **.).  This Ordinance is recorded in Ordinance 
Book # 9 pp. **. 
 
Witness my hand and corporate seal of the City, this ** day of  *** 20**. 
 
_________________________ 
Esther J. McCrackin 
City Clerk 
City of Henderson, North Carolina 

 



CAF 15-31-A: 8 June 2015 Council Meeting: Public Hearing 
Page 5 of 22 

 

 

CAF 15-31 
Attachment #2 



CAF 15-31-A: 8 June 2015 Council Meeting: Public Hearing 
Page 6 of 22 

 



CAF 15-31-A: 8 June 2015 Council Meeting: Public Hearing 
Page 7 of 22 

 



CAF 15-31-A: 8 June 2015 Council Meeting: Public Hearing 
Page 8 of 22 

 

 
 

CAF 15-31 
Attachment #3 



CAF 15-31-A: 8 June 2015 Council Meeting: Public Hearing 
Page 9 of 22 

 



CAF 15-31-A: 8 June 2015 Council Meeting: Public Hearing 
Page 10 of 22 

 



CAF 15-31-A: 8 June 2015 Council Meeting: Public Hearing 
Page 11 of 22 

 



CAF 15-31-A: 8 June 2015 Council Meeting: Public Hearing 
Page 12 of 22 

 



CAF 15-31-A: 8 June 2015 Council Meeting: Public Hearing 
Page 13 of 22 

 



CAF 15-31-A: 8 June 2015 Council Meeting: Public Hearing 
Page 14 of 22 

 

 



CAF 15-31-A: 8 June 2015 Council Meeting: Public Hearing 
Page 15 of 22 

 

 



CAF 15-31-A: 8 June 2015 Council Meeting: Public Hearing 
Page 16 of 22 

 

 



CAF 15-31-A: 8 June 2015 Council Meeting: Public Hearing 
Page 17 of 22 

 

 

 



CAF 15-31-A: 8 June 2015 Council Meeting: Public Hearing 
Page 18 of 22 

 

 



CAF 15-31-A: 8 June 2015 Council Meeting: Public Hearing 
Page 19 of 22 

 

 

 



CAF 15-31-A: 8 June 2015 Council Meeting: Public Hearing 
Page 20 of 22 

 

 



CAF 15-31-A: 8 June 2015 Council Meeting: Public Hearing 
Page 21 of 22 

 

 



CAF 15-31-A: 8 June 2015 Council Meeting: Public Hearing 
Page 22 of 22 

 

 



  

CAF 15-44: 8 June 2015 Council Meeting: Public Hearing 
Page 1 of 25 

 

 
 
 
 
 

 
_______________________________________ 

 

3 June 2015 
 

TO: The Honorable Mayor James D. O’Geary and Members of City Council 
 
FR: Ed Wyatt, City Manager 
 
RE: CAF:  15-44 

Consideration of Approval of Ordinance 15-19, Amending the Zoning Ordinance to 
include Design Standards on Solar Farms and Add Section 675B Solar Farms and 
Section 1002 to the City Zoning Code. 

 
Ladies and Gentlemen: 
 
Council Retreat Goals Addressed By This Item:   
 
 KSO 3: Revise and align land use and sign ordinance 

 
Recommendation: 
 
 Approval of Ordinance 15-19, Amending the Zoning Ordinance to include design standards 

on Solar Farms and add Section 675B Solar Farms and Section 1002 to the City Zoning Code 
 
Executive Summary: 
 
On February 23, 2015, the City Council instructed the Planning Board and staff to draft an 
ordinance on Solar Farms Design Standards / Supplementary Regulations. After three public 
hearings (March 9, April 6, and May 4), a Planning Board work session (April 28) and a special 
work session (May 19) with City Council, Ordinance 15-19 is now ready for a Public Hearing 
and approval with all changes including City Council’s suggestions. 
 
Attachments: 
 1. Ordinance 15-19 
 2. Planning Board Minutes March 9, 2015 
 3. Planning Board Minutes April 6, 2015 
 4. Planning Board Work Session Minutes April 28 
 5. Planning Board Minutes May 4, 2015 
 6. Council Work Session Minutes, May 19, 2015 

City Council Action Form 
Office of City Manager 

P. O. Box 1434 
Henderson, NC  27536 

252.430.5701 

 
 
 
 
Council Meeting: 8 June 15  Regular Meeting 



  

CAF 15-44: 8 June 2015 Council Meeting: Public Hearing 
Page 2 of 25 

 

ORDINANCE 15-19 
 

PROVIDING SUPPLEMENTARY USE REGULATIONS AND  
DESIGN STANDARDS FOR SOLAR FARMS 

 
 

The City Council of the City Henderson, North Carolina ordains: 
 

Section 1. That the following section be added to the City Zoning Code:  
 
Section 675B. Solar Farms 

 
675B.1 Site Plan.  
 
A site plan, drawn to scale, must be approved by the Zoning Administrator. The plan shall show 
the proposed layout of solar collectors, panels, structures, (including inverter or electrical panel 
structures), screening, fencing, existing vegetation and landscaping related equipment. The plan 
shall also show equipment and landscaping elevations property lines, right-of-way residential 
structures within 500 feet, required setbacks and names of all adjacent property owners, as listed 
in current Vance County Tax Records. 
 
675B.2. Setbacks.  
 
Solar collectors located in the I-1, I-2, and I-3 zoning districts shall be a minimum of 50 feet 
from all road right-of-ways and 25 feet from property lines. Solar collectors located in the R-A 
zoning district shall be a minimum of 100 feet from all road right-of-ways and 50 feet from 
property lines. No solar or other energy collectors or solar farm structures (including fencing) 
shall be located within 100 feet of any residential structure. The maximum height for any solar or 
other energy collectors and solar farm structure is 20 feet as measured from the grade at the base 
to its apex.  
 
675B.3. Screening and Fencing (Required).  
 
Plantings for screening in I-1, I-2, and I-3 zoning districts at installation shall be at a minimum of 
four feet in height.  Within three years, these plantings must reach a height of at least eight feet. 
The spacing of the plantings shall be in a double-row configuration, staggered, with ten-foot 
spacing between the centers of the main trunks. Existing foliage, such as trees and vegetation, 
may be used in conjunction with the plantings to create an opaque screening. If so used, the 
standards provided for plantings apply and must be met. Fencing shall be placed behind the 
plantings and, if applicable, the foliage.  Fencing shall be a minimum of height of six feet of 
commercial grade to prevent trespassers from entering the area. 
 
Plantings for screening in R-A zoning districts at installation shall be at a minimum six feet in 
height. Within three years, these plantings must reach a height of at least twelve feet. The 
spacing of the plantings shall be in a double-row configuration, staggered, with ten-foot spacing 

CAF 15-44 
Attachment #1 



  

CAF 15-44: 8 June 2015 Council Meeting: Public Hearing 
Page 3 of 25 

 

between the centers of the main trunks. Existing foliage, such as trees and vegetation, may be 
used in conjunction with the plantings to create an opaque screening.  If so used, the standards 
provided for plantings apply and must be met. Fencing shall be placed behind the plantings and, 
if applicable, the foliage.  Fencing shall be minimum 6’ in height and commercial grade to keep 
prevent trespassers from entering the area. 
 
675B.4 Signage 
Informational signs of contact shall be place at the main entrance of facility in accordance with 
section 400 of the sign ordinance.  
 
675B.5. Noise  
 
Noise levels measured at the property line shall not exceed fifty (50) decibels when located 
adjacent to an existing residence or residential district. 
 
675B.6. Power Transmission Lines 
 
Power Transmission Lines: To the extent practical, all new power transmissions lines to any 
building, structure or utility connection shall be located underground. Existing above ground 
utility lines shall be allowed to remain in their current location or connection to utility system. 
 
675B.7. Inspections 
 
Inspections: Each solar facility shall be inspected throughout the year to ensure landscaping meet 
requirements of ordinance any conditions of Special Use Permit granted by the Board of 
Adjustment. A $1000 dollar inspection fee is associated with annual inspection. 
 
675B7. Termination of Uses. Decommissioning Plan,  
 
1. A decommissioning plan shall be submitted by the operator of the farm and the 

landowner (if different) and submitted with a permit application.  The plan shall address 
the following:   

 
(a) Defined conditions upon which decommissioning will be initiated, such as end of 

lease or cessation of operations.    
 (b) Removal of all equipment, conduits, structures, fencing, roads, and foundations. 
 (c) Restoration of property to condition prior to development of the solar farm.  
 (d) Timeframe for completion of decommissioning activities, not to exceed one year. 
            (e) Description and copy of lease and any other agreement with landowner 

addressing decommissioning. 
 (f) Name and address of person or party responsible for decommissioning. 
 (g) Schedule for updating of decommissioning plan. 
 (h) A security bond between developer and property owner shall be a part of   
  decommissioning plan for the protection of property owner. 
  
 



  

CAF 15-44: 8 June 2015 Council Meeting: Public Hearing 
Page 4 of 25 

 

2. A recorded copy from Vance County, North Carolina Office of the Register of Deeds 
shall be submitted to the City Zoning Administrator prior to commencement of construction of 
the solar farm. 
 
Section 2.   That the following definition be added Section 1002 of the City Zoning Code:  
 
105. Solar Farm.  Components, mounted to the ground or other structures, and supporting 
equipment and structures that can convert solar energy into electric or other usable energy form, 
not to co-locate with a residential or commercial use on a site with one acre or greater. 
 
 The foregoing Ordinance, introduced by ***** and seconded by ***** on this the ___ 
day of June 2015, and having been submitted to a roll call vote, was approved by the following 
votes: Ayes:  Noes:    
 
 
 

Mayor James D. O'Geary 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
Esther J. McCrackin, City Clerk 
 
 
 
Approved to Legal Form: 
 
________________________________ 
D. Rix Edwards, City Attorney 
 
 
 



  

CAF 15-44: 8 June 2015 Council Meeting: Public Hearing 
Page 5 of 25 

 

 
 
 

 
 

          City of Henderson 
   Planning and Community Development Department 
 Post Office Box 1434 / 134 Rose Avenue / Henderson, NC 27536-1434 

Phone: (252) 430-5723         FAX:  (252) 492-7935 
 

 REVISED MINUTES 
HENDERSON PLANNING BOARD 

MONDAY, March 9, 2015 – 3:30 P.M. 
CITY HALL – COUNCIL CHAMBERS 

 
Members Present – Horace Bullock, Arthur Henderson, Jimmie Ayscue, Keith Coffey 
(Alternative), Phil Walters, Marguerite Anduze, & Arnold Bullock.  
 
Members Absent – Michael Rainey & Rick Easter 
 
Staff Present – Development Service Director: Corey Williams, Robert Harris: Planner, 
Karen Foster: Zoning Administrator, City Attorney: Rix Edwards 
 

 
(1) CALL TO ORDER – Meeting was called to order by Vice Chairman Horace Bullock. 
Roll was called. A quorum was present.  
 
(2) APPROVAL OF MINUTES: Minutes were approved for January 5 & February 2, 
2015. Motion was made by Mr. Jimmie Ayscue and seconded by Mr. Phil Walters. It was voted 
unanimously 7-0.   
 
(3) BUSINESS – DISCUSSION 
 
 New Business: 
 
March 9, 2015: notes from recorded minutes 
 
Case (PB 05-15) Providing Supplementary Use Regulations and Design Standards for Solar 
Farms.   
 
Executive Summary:  
 
On February 23, 2015, the City Council instructed staff to research and draft a text amendment 
on Solar Farm Design Standards and seek advisement from the Planning Board.  The City 

CAF 15-44 
Attachment #2 



  

CAF 15-44: 8 June 2015 Council Meeting: Public Hearing 
Page 6 of 25 

 

Zoning Ordinance does not address the Regulations and Design Standards. The objective is to 
suggest supplementary regulations, design standards, and define solar farm for the City of 
Henderson and Extra-Territorial Jurisdiction. 
 
Corey Williams, (Development Services Director) introduced the item and reviewed the packet 
of information pertaining to the text amendment. The text amendment would allow specific 
design standards and regulations for Solar Farms. The Board of Adjustment would have some 
minimum standards of criteria on what the solar farms requirements are and where they are 
located within the City & ETJ limits.   
 
Mr. Horace Bullock opened the public hearing for all parties of interest to comment.  
 
Mr. David Neill (an attorney for Smith Moore Leatherwood, LLP at 434 Fayetteville Street, 
Suite 2800, Raleigh NC 27601, behalf of Strata Solar and the owner) spoke in favor of the text 
amendment and provided a handout on buffer yards and landscaping screening requirements. He 
recommended approval based on the proposal. He answered all the Planning Board’s questions 
concerning this matter.  
 
Mr. Bill Edwards (550 Spring Valley Lake Road Henderson, NC 27536) spoke in opposition of 
solar farms. He provided a list of proposed solar farms. Several are proposed in the ETJ area and 
the county. Martin Creek Road is in operation and Spring Valley Road is proposed. The Planning 
Board voted to approve the spot rezoning not knowing the impact.  He said: the City of 
Henderson is declining in population, Vance County has 253 miles and 25% of it is Kerr Lake. 
This is not related to tax based or sales tax and revenue. Mr. Walters recused himself from the 
voting. Then Mr. Bill Edwards started to accuse the Planning Board of not taking a look at the 
Spring Valley site. He said: “the lease will be up before it is concealed”. He then discussed the 
traffic concerns on how many people use Spring Valley Road every day.   
 
Mr. Louis Iannone (a Stata Solar engineer) offered to work with staff on any type of buffer 
needed on this site.  Plan view, elevation view and engineering analysis are the key components 
in determining where a specific site is located. The applicant started referring to his site on 
Spring Valley Rd. Buffer is 8 to 10 feet or whatever the Planning Board requires. The density of 
the plan will meet the Planning Board requirements. Mr. Walters asked a question concerning 
landscaping requirements? How many years will it take the trees to grow without seeing the 
panels? It depends on the tree size. Mr. Dave Neill asked where the list is originated and Mr. Bill 
Edwards received the information from the NC Utility Commission Docket. Mr. Lewis Iannone 
then disagreed with Mr. Bill Edwards saying “this is not reliable source”. He started explaining 
how the Utility Commission works. They will offer the homeowner to lease your land. Finally, 
Duke Energy will decide on where these grids or solar panels are placed.   
 
Mr. David Neill answered the question about screening. He quoted from the Vance County 
Ordinance “the screening is not mentioned.”  Strata Solar have proposed for the Spring Valley 
site: a buffering staggered two rows deep of minimum 4 feet height on day of hood of screening 
with an opaque view in 3-5 years. They have a 30 year leasing contract.  
 



  

CAF 15-44: 8 June 2015 Council Meeting: Public Hearing 
Page 7 of 25 

 

Question was asked by a Planning Board member: What type of maintenance agreement is 
required? Strata Solar replied “we have a department on just maintenance issues”. The Planning 
Board continued to discuss this Spring Valley site and not the text amendment. Corey reminded 
the Planning Board the text amendment is not about a site specific area. It will be designed as a 
special use permit to the Board of Adjustment. They will not be unlimited amount of solar 
panels. 
 
Mr. Bill Edwards said that Strata Solar wants this site because power substation supply is close 
by and then said “there are no 30 year contracts on leasing”.   
 
Mr. Edward Spain corrected Mr. Bill Edwards about the lease agreement.  He discussed it with 
his lawyer.  
 
Mr. Stuart Litvin, (Director of the Henderson-Vance Economic Development Commission) 
agreed with city’s staff recommendations (especially with the section on termination use). 
The public hearing was then closed by Mr. Horace Bullock.   
 
Mr. Phil Waters requested an expert opinion from Mr. Bob Leiker to provide Solar Energy 
information. The motion was made by Mr. Walters and second by Mrs. Marguerite Anduze to 
table the text amendment to April 6, 2015.  
 
Before the meeting was adjourned, Corey Williams discussed the calendar with the Planning 
Board. Due to holiday conflicts, the Planning Board will meet on September 14, 2015 and 
December 7, 2015.   
 
Finally, the meeting was adjourned at 4:15 PM.  

 
(4)  ADJOURNMENT:  
 
At 4:15 PM a motion to adjourn the meeting was made by Mr. Horace Bullock and the motion 
was carried. 
 
NEXT MEETING: April 6, 2015 @ 3:30 PM 
 
Minutes respectfully submitted by 
 
 
 
Robert Harris 
Planner 
 
 
 
 
 
 



  

CAF 15-44: 8 June 2015 Council Meeting: Public Hearing 
Page 8 of 25 

 

 
 
 

 
 

          City of Henderson 
   Planning and Community Development Department 
 Post Office Box 1434 / 134 Rose Avenue / Henderson, NC 27536-1434 

Phone: (252) 430-5722         FAX:  (252) 492-7935 
 

 APPROVED MINUTES 
HENDERSON PLANNING BOARD 

MONDAY, APRIL 6, 2015 – 3:30 P.M. 
CITY HALL – COUNCIL CHAMBERS 

 
Members Present – Michael Rainey, Horace Bullock, Arthur Henderson, Jimmie Ayscue, 
Keith Coffey (Alternative), Phil Walters, Marguerite Anduze.  
 
Members Absent – Arnold Bullock & Rick Easter 
 
Staff Present – Development Service Director: Corey Williams, Robert Harris: Planner, 
Karen Foster: Zoning Administrator, City Attorney: Rix Edwards 
 

 
(4) CALL TO ORDER – Meeting was called to order by Chairman Michael Rainey. Roll 
was called. A quorum was present.  
 
(5) APPROVAL OF MINUTES: Minutes were approved for March 9, 2015. Motion was 
made by Mr. Horace Bullock and seconded by Mr. Jimmie Ayscue. It was voted approval 6-0.   
 
(6) OLD BUSINESS –WORK SESSION 

Mr. Corey Williams introduced to the Planning Board the agenda packet and the special guests. 
Mr. Bob Leiker and Mr. Tommy Cleveland are to provide information to the Planning Board 
about solar development. 
 
Mr. Bob Leiker (Renewable Program Manager, State Energy Program which is in the 
Department of Natural Resources) discussed with the Planning Board that North Carolina is 4th 
in the nation in solar capacity. There are concerns on Solar Farms such as: setbacks, definitions, 
decommissioning plans, aviation issues, landscaping and screening, and runoff, residential, 
industrial and commercial developments.  
 
Mr. Tommy Cleveland (Clean Energy Technology Center at NC State University, Professional 
Engineer) spoke about the template ordinance and the different types of levels a solar facilities 

CAF 15-44 
Attachment #3 



  

CAF 15-44: 8 June 2015 Council Meeting: Public Hearing 
Page 9 of 25 

 

and where it’s classified. Level 1 is a residential house on a rooftop or a parking lot system is 
permitted use by right. Level 2 is less than ½ acre of ground in residential area or industrial areas 
have no size limits and no public hearing is needed. Level 3 is considered a solar farm and is 
usually approved as a public hearing by a special use or conditional use permit. Setback 
requirements range from 15 to 50 feet back from property lines. He then discussed FAA 
requirements which included Glare Study Analysis, visibility issues, decommissioning plan and 
secure bonds.   
Corey Williams discussed with the Planning Board the changes from the previous draft 
ordinance.  We looked at the best practices. Site plan, screening, fencing, vegetation, and 
landscaping requirements are required on the recorded plat the Zoning Administrator approves. 
The draft ordinance include: setback requirements 100 feet from the right-of-way based on the 
template ordinance, wanted to be consisted with Vance County, fencing requirements were a 
height ordinance of four feet for trees is required, and double row tree configuration screening. 
The decommissioning plan was drafted from the template ordinance. The zoning ordinance 
already has a violation penalty. We looked at the FAA piece and the Oxford Henderson Airport 
is two miles from ETJ area. These are low small flying planes.  
 
Mr. Walters asked Mr. Tommy Cleveland about secure bonds? Mr. Walters wanted language 
added to the solar draft ordinance if a particular solar farm failed who has the responsibility to 
clean up the site? Mr. Rainey spoke up and said “this is an ordinance of trying to establish the 
do’s and don’ts with construction process and not the financial issues between the landowner and 
the company”. Mr. Rainey asked for legal advice from Mr. Rix Edwards (City Attorney) on what 
could be required about the decommissioning plan. 
 
Mr. Cleveland discusses the decommissioning plan in detail. Mr. Walters asked a question on the 
location of these sites in North Carolina? Are they successful in other states? Mr. Cleveland 
answered some of these proposed sites are not constructed. Mr. Cleveland spoke about a gradual 
decrease in solar usage overtime. The panels are usually produced over a 25 year period time. 
The average solar panel life span is unknown. The invertors have a shorter life span of 10 years. 
The technology with the solar panels is about 30 years. Once the system is constructed, the solar 
panels are usually not replaced however, some particular sites require upgrades.   
 
Mr. Rainey asked about certain restrictions within Vance County and City of Henderson? Mr. 
Williams replied: Vance County is similar to design, regulations, and restrictions. They had some 
complaints with their ordinance. How many actual farms are in Vance County? There are 8 
approximately solar farms within Vance County and City of Henderson.  Mr. Walters asked 
question concerning tax credits and financial terms. Mr. Bob Leiker answered them. Mr. Rainey 
reminded the Planning Board they are getting off track about financial obligations.  
 
Mr. Walters describes as an industrial site not an agricultural farm site. How did we come up 
with the term “farm”? In the template ordinance, they refer to it as a solar energy system or 
facility. The City gets no tax money from it no matter what use is there. Mr. Rainey reminded the 
Planning Board to concentrate on what the ordinance requirements are such as: screening, 
setbacks, decommissioning plan, and so forth to be sent to the City Council.  
 



  

CAF 15-44: 8 June 2015 Council Meeting: Public Hearing 
Page 10 of 25 

 

Mr. Walters asked about what happens if a site is caught on fire? Mr. Cleveland responded these 
materials are ground mounted panels and are produced and not enough combustible material 
there. With these setbacks it is unlikely to burn elsewhere.   
 
Mr. Williams read the definition to the Planning Board on solar farms. In April 2012, the 
Planning Board and City Council approved a special use permit in I1, I2, I3 and RA zoning 
districts.  We are coming back to include the supplemental regulations on solar farms.   
 
Mr. Walters ask question referring to noise regulations. Mr. Cleveland responded: during the 
daytime hours noise is measured at ½ to 1 megawatt and at night it is zero sound.  
 
Item 2.2 Planning Board Agenda: Review Draft Ordinance on Solar Regulations was decided by 
the Planning Board to table it until after the public hearing.  
 
 
(4) PUBLIC HEARING 

 Case (PB05-15): Public Hearing: Providing Supplementary Use Regulations and Design 
Standards for Solar Farms.  

 
On February 23, 2015, the City Council instructed staff to research and draft a text 

amendment on Solar Farms Design Standards and seeks advisement from the Planning Board.  
The current City Zoning Ordinance does not address the regulations and design standards. The 
objective is to suggest supplementary regulations, design standards, and define solar farm for the 
City of Henderson and the Extra-Territorial Jurisdiction. The Planning Board reviewed this item 
on March 2, 2015. During this meeting the Planning Board decided to invite a person that 
specializes in solar template development. Staff has revised the draft ordinance and has two 
individuals coming to the meeting on April 6, 2015 at 3:30 PM. The objective for this meeting is 
to gather information, review the draft ordinance, and pass or deny this draft ordinance. This is 
public hearing in addition to the workshop. 
 
Mr. Michael Rainey opened the public hearing for all parties of interest to comment.  
 
Mr. David Neill (an attorney for Smith Moore Leatherwood, LLP, at 434 Fayetteville Street, 
Suite 2800, Raleigh NC 27601) spoke in favor of the text amendment. Also, he introduced Ms. 
Kathryn Parker (2812 Fowler Ave., Raleigh NC 27607, Landscaper, designer for Strata) to the 
Planning Board. Strata’s first concerns were the setback requirements, of a 100 foot from the 
edge of the right-of-way minimum as a base standard with the opportunity upon a showing of the 
Board of Adjustment to have additional screening and would like the Board to consider reducing 
the 100 foot setback requirement. The second concern was in Section 675B.3: Screening and 
Fencing of the drafted ordinance is the planting distance of five feet being too short. If you plant 
these bushes five feet apart, it will reduce the trunk growth for each tree. The requirement is 
intended to be 10 trees in each row at 10 feet apart. Strata requirement is a glare study to be 
completed at the proposed location. The Fire Chief requires them to have a shared key lock 
system.  
 



  

CAF 15-44: 8 June 2015 Council Meeting: Public Hearing 
Page 11 of 25 

 

Mr. Walters asked Solar: What type of ground cover is typically put in for this site? Ms. Parker 
responded during the warm season they plant Bermuda Rye or Fescue grass is what they place. 
Furthermore, maintenance issues were discussed on mowing the grass, fertilizing and soil 
testing.  
 
Mr. Lewis Iannone (50101 Governors Drive, Chapel Hill NC 27526, Strata solar engineer) goes 
through an extensive engineering process before Duke Energy agrees on the particular site. He 
then discusses financial terms and how the entire project is paid off in 10 years. The tax credits 
pay for the majority of the project up front with rest of it having equality in or Strata borrowing 
the money from the bank. It’s a real estate development project. State credit expires this year and 
federal credit expires next year.  
 
Mr. Rainey reminded everyone at the public hearing that we are here vote on and discuss the 
draft ordinance standards and regulations. We are not here to vote on a specific location site.  
 
Mr. Bryan Alsop (192 Lake Road, Henderson NC 27536, opposition against proposal) started 
comparing the City of Henderson with Vance County’s jurisdiction on solar farms. He presented 
the Planning Board with a handout. He asked a question: what kind of voltage output does a solar 
farm usually have? Mr. Cleveland answered it’s whatever the distribution lines have that are 
connected. All existing lines are through a substation. They are packaged with the invertors. He 
discusses the impact on radio frequency and federal communication issues. In addition, he wants 
both the city and the county to have similar regulations on solar farms.  
 
Mr. Walters (Planning Board member) had a question based on the information and knowledge 
you have should these solar farms only be for industrial use?  Mr. Bryan Alsop replied this land 
should be considered industrial use only.     
 
Mr. John Davis (Strata Solar, Durham, NC, and former Progress Energy) is an expert in 
transmission lines. We are placing four times less power than what is circulating around the City 
of Henderson. No nuclear transformer will be located here.  
 
Mr. Bill Edwards (550 Spring Valley Lake Road Henderson, NC 27537) spoke in opposition of 
solar farms. He communicated to the Planning Board there are 4 proposed solar farms located 
within one mile of his residence. Also, he reminded the Planning Board in 2010, the 2030 
Comprehensive Plan represents this area as residential growth. Residential area does not reflect 
where solar farms are located. Solar farms should be allowed in I1, I2, and I3 industrial uses 
only.  
 
Mr. Edward Spain (456 Spring Valley Road, Henderson, NC 27537), communicated to the 
Planning Board that there is no noise, pollution, and water or sewer availability. “He was never 
offered by the City of Henderson or Vance County services for water or sewer. Without these 
components it becomes very difficult to build a house”.   
 
The public hearing was then closed at 5:10 by Mr. Michael Rainey.   
 
Discussion:  



  

CAF 15-44: 8 June 2015 Council Meeting: Public Hearing 
Page 12 of 25 

 

 
Mr. Michael Rainey could not vote on the drafted ordinance without additional language. We 
will call a special meeting if needed.  
 
Corey Williams (Planning Director) asked the chairman “what direction should planning staff 
take”? Do we need to discuss FAA requirements, security bond terms, additional safety issues, 
minimum setbacks, additional screening and landscaping issues? Mr. Rainey asked Corey if he 
looked at all the different counties and Corey responded “yes, we did”.  FAA regulations are 
complex and many counties or staying away from regulations with aviation.  
 
Mr. Walters made a comment concerning back in the spring of 2012, the Planning Board was 
given a task on where solar farms should be located within the zoning ordinance. The Planning 
Board agreed to have a special use permit in the following zoning districts I1, I2, I3 and RA. “I 
no longer feel comfortable with this text amendment and motioned to the Planning Board to 
recommend a new text amendment allowing solar farms in I1, I2, and I3 zoning districts only. 
No residential zones for solar farms are allowed within City of Henderson and ETJ areas”. This 
would clarify the regulations and design standards.   
   
A new motion was presented by Mr. Phil Walters to recommend a new text amendment to the 
zoning ordinance to allow ground mounted solar installations in I1, I2, and I3 area by special use 
permit and not in any residential district within the City of Henderson and the ETJ areas. Mr. 
Bullock seconded the motion. He wanted to take this amendment to the Council for approval. 
 
However, Mr. David Neill (communicated to the Chairman, Mr. Rainey) said “there has been no 
formal legal notice for this new text amendment”. Mr. Rainey asked Mr.  Rix Edwards (City 
Attorney) for legal advice. He replies “you have two separate actions and a new proposal”. The 
Planning Staff would advertise the new text amendment for public notice and the draft ordinance 
would be tabled for another hearing. Mr. Rainey asked Mr. Rix Edwards does it require a public 
hearing. Mr. Rix Edwards replied “yes it does”. Mr. Rainey asked: Do we have to vote to place 
this item on the agenda for next month? Mr. Rix Edwards said “yes”.  
 
Mr. Rainey made a motion to table the draft ordinance presented by planning staff. A motion was 
made by Mr. Jimmie Ayscue and seconded by Mr. Bullock to table this text amendment. The 
vote was passed unanimously.  
 
Next, Mr. Rainey motioned to the Planning Board by Mr. Walters a new text amendment to 
allow solar farms in the I1, I2, and I3 zoning districts as a special use permit. Mr. Bullock 
seconded the motion again.  The vote was passed unanimously. 
 
Corey Williams (Planning Director) asked the (Chairman), Mr. Rainey: Do you want a special 
meeting? Two weeks is the minimum amount of time for a public hearing. Mr. Bullock made the 
recommendation to have it in May.   

 
(4)  ADJOURNMENT:  
 
At 5:20 PM a motion to adjourn the meeting was made by Mr. Bullock. The motion carried. 



  

CAF 15-44: 8 June 2015 Council Meeting: Public Hearing 
Page 13 of 25 

 

 
NEXT MEETING: May 4, 2015 @ 3:30 PM 
 
 
Minutes respectfully submitted by 
 
 
 
Robert Harris 
Planner 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



  

CAF 15-44: 8 June 2015 Council Meeting: Public Hearing 
Page 14 of 25 

 

 
 

          City of Henderson 
   Planning and Community Development Department 
 Post Office Box 1434 / 134 Rose Avenue / Henderson, NC 27536-1434 

Phone: (252) 430-5722         FAX:  (252) 492-7935 
 
  
 

DRAFT MINUTES FOR WORK SESSION 
HENDERSON PLANNING BOARD 

TUESDAY, APRIL 28, 2015 – 3:30 P.M. 
CITY HALL – COUNCIL CHAMBERS 

 
Members Present – Michael Rainey, Horace Bullock, Arthur Henderson, Jimmie Ayscue, 
Keith Coffey (Alternative), Phil Walters, Arnold Bullock, Marguerite Anduze.  
 
Members Absent – Rick Easter 
 
Staff Present – Development Services Director: Corey Williams, Robert Harris: Planner, 
Karen Foster: Zoning Administrator, City Attorney: Rix Edwards 
 
This is not a public hearing for public comment.  

 
(7) WORK SESSION 

Mr. Corey Williams introduced to the Planning Board the Regulations regarding additional 
Supplementary Use Regulations (Article 600B). FAA and security bonds were not placed in the 
draft ordinance therefore; there is no clear way of regulating these requirements. Mr. Williams 
presented to the Planning Board the following sections of the City’s ordinance. 
 
675B.2. Setbacks.  
 
Setbacks in all industrial districts are 50 feet from road right-of-way, 25 feet from property lines. 
Also, in Residential Agricultural District are 100 feet from right-of-way and 50 feet from the 
property lines. The maximum height for any solar or other energy collectors and solar farm 
structure is 20 feet as measured from the grade at the base to its apex.  
 
675B.3. Screening and Fencing (Required) 
 
Screening and fencing are required.  
 
Minimum height of any planting shall be at least four feet upon installation and within three 
year, planting shall reach a height of 8 feet. The spacing of the planting shall be in a double-row 

CAF 15-44 
Attachment #4 



  

CAF 15-44: 8 June 2015 Council Meeting: Public Hearing 
Page 15 of 25 

 

configuration, staggered, with ten-foot spacing between the centers of the main trunks. Existing 
trees and vegetation may be used in conjunction with these requirements to create an opaque 
screening. Fencing shall be place behind planting screening or vegetation with the intent to 
shield fencing with vegetation. 
 
Mr. Williams asked the Planning Board if the word “farm” was the correct word for these 
facilities or should this be called a solar facility?   
 
Mr. Rainey asked the Planning staff for clarification on where solar farms are located and if most 
of the properties are within the ETJ.   
 
Mr. Walters mentioned a newspaper article in the Henderson Dispatch concerning solar farms 
and distance requirements. The article stated that Vance County has proposed a distance of a ½ 
mile from one solar facility to another located in there Residential Zoning District.  
 
Mr. Horace Bullock asked if there were any requirements concerning minimum lot sizes for a 
large solar facility. Mr. Williams explained the NC Template Ordinance having three levels on 
solar farms. Level 1 is used for personal use, accessory and is allowed by right. Level 3 is for 
large solar facilities and requires as a special use permit. Level 2 is for smaller areas less than 10 
acres and requires a special use permit. 
 
Mr. Walters provided 3 handouts. 

 Definition of a Ground-mounted Solar Power Energy System “Solar Farm” from a 
neighboring county  

  NC Department of Environment and Natural Resources on renewable energy  
  Large Scale Solar Applications.  

 
Mr. Williams continued the conversation about minimum size requirements with Mr. Horace 
Bullock.  Mr. Williams stated, “If you disturb over a ½ acre of land a grading and erosion control 
plan is required and may require a special use permit”.  
 
Mrs. Marguerite Anduze wanted to know who checks on the solar farms concerning safety. Mr. 
Williams’s response was that he did not know of any safety requirements however, there may be 
a fire and building safety inspection.  
 
Mr. Rainey wanted to know what constitutes a solar facility for commercial use. Mr. Williams 
said, “The NC Template Ordinance states there are different levels indicating a farm versus a 
personal use. Solar panels are used in public buildings such as schools to reduce cost in power 
output”.    
 
Mr. Walters discussed noise regulations and what was allowable? Wind turbines are 50 decibels. 
There is not a lot of noise however a hum can be heard. The solar draft ordinance should address 
the noise issue and not exceed 50 decibels. Another item is setbacks from a residential area, 
church, school and athletic facility. Mr. Walters requested at least a 500 foot setback from all 
these facilities and a 300 foot setback from any business or commercial enterprise. Also, Mr. 
Walters wanted to require all solar panels and invertors, along with power lines, placed 



  

CAF 15-44: 8 June 2015 Council Meeting: Public Hearing 
Page 16 of 25 

 

underground. In addition, he requested an informational sign posted at the entrance listing 
property owners and emergency contacts.  
 
Mr. Rainey reminded the Planning Board that not many people like changes and sometimes we 
need to accept development.   
 
Mr. Williams requested clarification on distance requirements of 500 feet in all industrial zoning 
districts from the Planning Board.  Mr. Williams reminded the Planning Board that schools and 
churches are allowed in I2 zoning districts and that both the I2 and RA districts have different 
setback requirements.    
 
Mr. Walters requested language concerning the decommissioning of a site and security bonds.  
He stated concerns about protecting the land owner from abandonment.  
 
Mr. Williams was then instructed by the Mr. Rix Edwards (City Attorney) to ask a question in a 
closed session. Mr. Walters and Mr. Horace Bullock motioned to close the session. The Planning 
Board voted unanimously.  
 
Mr. Walters reopened the discussion with the Planning Board voted unanimously.  
 
Mr. Williams asked the Planning Board for direction on distance requirements, security bonds, 
and a clear definition on all different levels on what a solar farm is.  
 
Mr. Williams reminded the Planning Board that setbacks in all Industrial districts are 50 feet 
from road right-of-way and 25 feet from property lines. In addition, Residential Agricultural 
Districts are 100 feet from the right-of-way and 50 feet from the property lines. 
 
Mr. Walters wanted to change the requirement of the Residential Agricultural District to read: 
100 feet from right-of-way and 100 feet from the property lines.  
 
Mr. Williams asked the Planning Board for clarification on the distance requirements from 
facility to facility and the security bond. The Planning Board discussed the security bond being a 
private matter between owners and leasing agent and decided not to take any action on the 
matter.   
 
Mr. Williams clarified the definition section on solar farms.  
 
The Planning Board tried to come to an agreement for solar farms to be located at least ½ mile 
apart.  
 
Mr. Rainey requested consent on this proposal. The Planning Board’s decision was as follows:   

 (5) No’s  
 (3) Yes’s.  

 
Mr. Rainey asked Mr. Williams what would be on the agenda for May 4, 2015.   
 



  

CAF 15-44: 8 June 2015 Council Meeting: Public Hearing 
Page 17 of 25 

 

(8) ZONING MAP : 

Time did not permit us to discuss the zoning map.   

 
(3)  ADJOURNMENT:  
 
At 5:10 PM a motion to adjourn the meeting was made by Mr. Jimmie Ayscue and second by 
Mr. Horace Bullock. The motion carried. 
 
NEXT MEETING: May 4, 2015 @ 3:30 PM 
 
 
Minutes respectfully submitted by 
 
 
 
 
 
Robert Harris 
Planner 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



  

CAF 15-44: 8 June 2015 Council Meeting: Public Hearing 
Page 18 of 25 

 

 

          City of Henderson 
   Planning and Community Development Department 
 Post Office Box 1434 / 134 Rose Avenue / Henderson, NC 27536-1434 

Phone: (252) 430-5722         FAX:  (252) 492-7935 
 

 DRAFT MINUTES 
HENDERSON PLANNING BOARD 
MONDAY MAY 4, 2015 – 3:30 P.M. 

CITY HALL – COUNCIL CHAMBERS 
 

Members Present – Michael Rainey, Horace Bullock, Arthur Henderson, Jimmie Ayscue, 
Keith Coffey (Alternative), Phil Walters, Marguerite Anduze, Arnold Bullock. 
 
Members Absent – Rick Easter 
 
Staff Present – Development Service Director: Corey Williams, Robert Harris: Planner, 
Karen Foster: Zoning Administrator, City Attorney: Rix Edwards 
 

 
(9) CALL TO ORDER – Meeting was called to order by Chairman Michael Rainey. Roll 
was called. A quorum was present.  
 
(10) APPROVAL OF MINUTES: Minutes were approved and amended for April 6 and 
April 28, 2015. Motion was made by Mr. Horace Bullock and seconded by Mr. Jimmie Ayscue. 
It was voted approval 8-0.   
 
(11)    PUBLIC HEARING  

 Case (PB-06-15): Public Hearing: Text Amendment Section 310A Table of 
Permitted Uses: Allow schools to be a special use permit in the I2 District. 

 
Mr. Corey Williams (Development Services Director) introduced the text amendment. Staff had 
no concerns with the proposal. 
 
Mr. Rainey opened the public hearing for comments on this matter.  
 
Mr. Johnathan Care (attorney for Vance County Charter School) spoke for the item. Vance 
County Charter School purchased land in an Industrial Zoning District and is expanding the 
facility to include a high school.  
 
No one spoke against the text amendment.  
 
Mr. Rainey closed the public hearing.  

 
 
CAF 15-44 
Attachment #5 



  

CAF 15-44: 8 June 2015 Council Meeting: Public Hearing 
Page 19 of 25 

 

 
A motion was made by Mr. Jimmie Ayscue and seconded by Mrs. Anduze to approve the text 
amendment. A unanimous vote was reached.  
 

 Case (PB05-15): Public Hearing: Providing Supplementary Use Regulations and 
Design Standards for Solar Farms.  

 
Mr. Williams reviewed the solar draft ordinance making changes the Planning Board requested. 
The changes were sizes of the solar farms, greater than 1 acre requires special use permit, 
different levels in definition section, setbacks, screening and fencing, noise, inspection and the 
decommissioning plan.  
 
Mr. Walters requested the following additions to the Solar Draft Ordinance 15-19: (1) 
underground connection panel to panel with exempting pole not included and (2) informational 
signage placement at the entrance of the facility for emergency contact.  
 
Mr. Horace Bullock included a security bond be added to the decommissioning plan. Mr. 
Williams spoke to the Planning Board “as long as it does not involve the city or county 
municipalities over a private matter”.  
 
Mr. Walters requested for churches, schools and athletic facilities to have a setback requirement 
of 500 feet away from solar panels in Residential Agricultural (RA) Districts only.   
 
Mr. Rainey opened the public hearing for comments on this matter.  
 
Mr. David Neill (an attorney for Smith Moore Leatherwood, LLP, at 434 Fayetteville Street, 
Suite 2800, Raleigh NC 27601) spoke in favor of the text amendment. Mr. Neill was shocked 
about the last minute additions. Mr. Neill had no objection with the underground connection 
language however, he objected to the following: 1) security bonds in the decommissioning plan 
and 2) churches, schools and athletic facilities have a setback requirement of 500 feet away from 
solar panels in Residential Agricultural (RA) Districts only. A handout on setbacks was passed to 
the Planning Board and staff.  
 
Mr. Lewis Iannone (50101 Governors Drive, Chapel Hill NC 27526, Strata solar engineer) 
objected to churches, schools and athletic facilities having a setback requirement of 500 feet 
away from solar panels in Residential Agricultural (RA) Districts only.  
 
Mr. Edward Spain (456 Spring Valley Road, Henderson, NC 27537), commended the Planning 
Board and staff on producing a document on solar ordinances. He told the Planning Board that 
North Carolina Governor Pat McCory is recommending expanding the tax credit on solar farms 
for one year.     
 
Mr. Jim Walters (1260 Spring Valley Road, Henderson, NC 27537), supported the security bond 
within the decommissioning plan.  
 



  

CAF 15-44: 8 June 2015 Council Meeting: Public Hearing 
Page 20 of 25 

 

Mr. John Davis (Strata Solar, Durham, NC, and former Progress Energy) supported the solar 
ordinance except the requirements concerning churches, schools and athletic facilities having a 
setback requirement of 500 feet away from solar panels in Residential Agricultural (RA) 
Districts only. Also, he objected to the Planning Board’s proposal on setback requirements. 
 
Mr. Rainey asked if anyone wanted to speak against the Solar Draft Ordinance. No one spoke. 
 
Mr. Rainey closed the public hearing.  
 
Discussion:  
 
Mr. Rix Edwards (City Attorney) presented the Planning Board options: 1) have Planning staff 
rewrite the solar draft ordinance and vote later or 2) make the additions, vote on the proposal and 
have staff rewrite it before the City Council meets next month. The Planning Board opted for the 
second scenario.  
 
Mr. Williams explained to the Planning Board the site plan information on the plat.  
 
Mr. Phil Walters (Planning Board member), made a motion to approve the solar draft ordinance 
with additions. The Planning Board requested the following additions to the Solar Draft 
Ordinance 15-19: 1) underground connection panel to panel with exempting pole not included, 2) 
informational signage placement, 3) a security bond added to the decommissioning plan between 
the landowner and the developer and does not involve the city or county governments, and 4) 
separation of 500 feet away from churches, schools and athletic facilities in Residential 
Agricultural (RA) Districts from solar panels.  
 
Mr. Jimmie Ayscue said, “that seems to be the only issue is the last request”.  
 
Mr. Rainey suggested the Planning Board have consent on the 500 foot separation on the 
proposal concerning the churches, schools and athletic facilities. Mr. Edwards (City Attorney) 
provided advice to Mr. Rainey concerning the proper procedure. 
 
The Planning Board’s decision was as follows: 
   

 (6) No’s (Mr. Michael Rainey, Mr. Horace Bullock, Mr. Arthur Henderson, Mr. Jimmie 
Ayscue, Mrs. Marguerite Anduze, Mr. Arnold Bullock). 

 (2) Yes’s. (Mr. Phil Walters, Mr. Keith Coffey)  
 
The motion died because of lack of support. 
 
Mr. Rainey eliminated the proposal concerning churches, schools and athletic facilities in 
Residential Agricultural (RA) Districts only have a setback requirement of 500 feet away from 
solar panels. 
 
The motion was second by Mr. Keith Coffey.  A unanimous vote was reached on the first three 
additions. 



  

CAF 15-44: 8 June 2015 Council Meeting: Public Hearing 
Page 21 of 25 

 

 
 

 Case (PB-07-15): Public Hearing: Text Amendment on not allowing solar farms in 
RA Zoning Districts.  

 
Mr. Rainey opened the public hearing for comments on this matter.  
 
Mr. Bill Edwards (550 Spring Valley Lake Road Henderson, NC 27537) supported the text 
amendment. Mr. Edwards reminded the Planning Board the 2030 Comprehensive Plan represents 
this area as residential growth. Residential area does not reflect where solar farms are located. 
Solar farms should be allowed in I1, I2, and I3 industrial uses only. He has a petition of 32 
property owners on Spring Valley Lake Road that support the text amendment.  
 
Mr. Jim Walters (1260 Spring Valley Road, Henderson, NC 27537), supported the text 
amendment. He provided a (handout) map to the Planning Board staff had created on where all 
solar farms are located in Vance County. “Solar farms are industrial applications”.    
 
Mr. Williams provided information to the chairman concerning the solar map which was 
produced by the City of Henderson Development Services Department.  
 
Mr. Rainey asked if anyone wanted to speak against the proposed text amendment.  
 
Mr. Stuart Litvin (Director of Economic Development Commission, 1775 Graham Ave, 
Henderson, NC 27536), discussed policy not individual projects. Mr. Litvin is a firm believer in 
property owners leasing their land for financial reasons. Vance County does not have provisions 
prohibiting solar farms in residential agricultural zoning districts.  
 
Mr. David Neill (an attorney for Smith Moore Leatherwood, LLP, at 434 Fayetteville Street, 
Suite 2800, Raleigh NC 27601) simply stated “this is a terrible idea”. Solar farms make low 
noise, traffic, and are appropriate uses in Residential Agricultural Districts rather than in high 
concentrated industrial areas. 
 
Mr. Lewis Iannone (50101 Governors Drive, Chapel Hill NC 27526, Strata solar engineer) 
agrees with Mr. Neill’s testimony. He encouraged the Planning Board to vote against the text 
amendment.  
 
Mr. Frank Hester (1656 St. Andrews Church Road, Henderson, NC), opposed the text 
amendment. Solar farms provide a use to the land that is not usable. He suggested to the 
Planning Board a solar farm would be environmentally clean and safe to the general public.  
 
Mr. John Davis (Strata Solar, Durham, NC, and former Progress Energy) opposed the text 
amendment.  Mr. Davis reminded the Planning Board the property is located in the ETJ area and 
an existing substation is near the proposed property. There is no water or sewer availability in the 
Spring Valley Farms area for future subdivisions. 
 



  

CAF 15-44: 8 June 2015 Council Meeting: Public Hearing 
Page 22 of 25 

 

Mr. Edward Spain (456 Spring Valley Road, Henderson, NC 27537), opposed the text 
amendment. There are a lot of permitted uses for Residential Agricultural (RA) Zoning Districts.  
 
Mr. Rainey closed the public hearing.  
 
Discussion: 
  
Mr. Rainey asked staff for clarification on the solar map. The blue line indicates the Extra 
Territorial Jurisdiction (ETJ) area. The orange line is the city limits area. There are 9 proposed 
sites in Vance County and 4 inside the ETJ area. There may be potential rezoning cases 
concerning solar facility areas.  
 
Mr. Phil Walters (Planning Board member), made a motion to approve the text amendment. Mr. 
Horace Bullock seconded the motion. The Planning Board’s decision was as follows: 
   

 (3) No’s (Mr. Arthur Henderson, Mrs. Marguerite Anduze, & Mr. Arnold Bullock). 
 (4) Yes’s. (Mr. Phil Walters, Mr. Horace Bullock, Mr. Jimmie Ayscue, Mr. Keith Coffey)  

 
The motion was carried and approved.  
 
 
(4)  ADJOURNMENT:  
 
At 5:20 PM a motion to adjourn the meeting was made by Mr. Jimmie Ayscue and second by 
Mr. Horace Bullock. The motion was carried. 
 
NEXT MEETING: June 1, 2015 @ 3:30 PM 
 
 
Minutes respectfully submitted by 
 
 
 
Robert Harris 
Planner 



  

CAF 15-44: 8 June 2015 Council Meeting: Public Hearing 
Page 23 of 25 

 

 
 

 City Council Minutes 
Special Called Meeting 

19 May 2015 

 
PRESENT 
 
Mayor James D. O’Geary, Presiding; and Council Members James C. Kearney, Sr., Sara M. 
Coffey, Michael C. Inscoe,  Brenda Peace-Jenkins, Garry D. Daeke, Fearldine A. Simmons and 
George M. Daye. 
 
ABSENT 
 
Council Member D. Michael Rainey 
 
STAFF PRESENT 
 
Interim City Manager Edward A. Wyatt, City Attorney D. Rix Edwards, City Clerk Esther J. 
McCrackin, Assistant City Manager Frank Frazier, Development Services Director Corey 
Williams and Planner Robert Harris. 
 
CALL TO ORDER    
   
The 19 May 2015 Special Called Meeting of the Henderson City Council was called to order by 
Mayor James D. O’Geary at 6:00 p.m. in the R. G. “Chick” Young, Jr. Council Chambers, 
Municipal Building, 134 Rose Avenue, Henderson, NC. 

            
ROLL CALL 
 
The City Clerk called the roll and advised Mayor O’Geary a quorum was present.  The City 
Clerk also advised the format would change so the Closed Session could be held first. 
 
With no discussion, Mayor O’Geary asked if Council was prepared to go into Closed Session 
and stated there would be no report following the session. 

CAF 15-44 
Attachment #6 



  

CAF 15-44: 8 June 2015 Council Meeting: Public Hearing 
Page 24 of 25 

 

 

CLOSED SESSION 
 
Council Member Inscoe moved for Council to convene in closed session pursuant to G.S. §143-
318.11(a)(4) for an Economic Development matter. Motion seconded by Council Member Daeke 
and unanimously approved. 
 
Council Member Kearney moved for Council to convene in open session.  Motion seconded by 
Council Member Daye, and unanimously approved.  
 
Mayor O’Geary asked the Clerk to proceed. 
 
OLD BUSINESS 
 
Solar Farms Discussion 
 
Development Director Williams began the discussion by providing a brief timeline of the solar 
farm issue.  This came before the Planning Board in January.  Then in February it went before 
Council where the issue was remanded back to the Planning Board for further information.  
Since February there have been several Planning Board discussions, including a work session.  
Mr. Williams said on May 4th the Planning Board approved a Text Amendment to not allow solar 
farms in RA zoning districts. 
 
Mr. Williams then reviewed the draft ordinance which incorporates many points from the North 
Carolina Solar Energy Development template.  He pointed out the ordinance includes the 
following requirements:  1) site plan, 2) setbacks, 3) screening and fencing, 4) signage, 5) noise, 
6) transmission lines, 7) annual inspection, 8) decommissioning, 9) security bond, and 10) 
definition (size of components). 
  
Council Member Daeke felt the screening (live plants such as trees/hedges) should be at least 6 
feet on the first day rather than allowing the screening to grow over a period of three years.  
Council Members Kearney and Coffey agreed.   
 
Council Member Coffey has no problem with solar farms as long as they are screened and not in 
the middle of the City.   
 
Council Member Kearney brought up the issue of unsightly, bare spots as trees/hedges do die but 
felt solar farms are acceptable if kept from view of the public. 
 
Council Member Inscoe suggested a fee for the annual inspection and asked who would do the 
inspection.  Mr. Williams said his department would be responsible and after a brief discussion, 
$1,000 was suggested as the annual fee. 
 
After further discussion, the following restrictions were requested by Council. 
 



  

CAF 15-44: 8 June 2015 Council Meeting: Public Hearing 
Page 25 of 25 

 

 8 foot screening required in RA with a process in place to replace the trees/hedges by the 
City at the expense of the property owner with the ability to enforce civil penalties  

 $1,000 annual inspection fee 
 Property owner responsible for upkeep 

 
There was then a discussion regarding what should be approved first by Council during the 
upcoming public hearing.  It was decided that the design standards would be approved first with 
the text amendment coming next. 
 
Mr. Williams then distributed a list of solar farms in the area along with applications at the State 
Clearing House. 
 
Council Member Coffey asked if the Clearing House list of solar farms indicates application has 
been made but no action has been taken.  Mr. Williams said that was correct. 
 
Mr. Williams asked for and received verification from Council regarding the sequence that they 
would like to consider these issues at the Public Hearing. The consensus was the sequence 
should be to continue the Public Hearing starting with the design regulations, then the rezoning 
and lastly the text amendment. 
 
There were no further questions so Mayor O’Geary asked if Council was prepared to adjourn. 
 
ADJOURNMENT 
 
Council Member Coffey moved for adjournment.  Motion seconded by Council Member Daye, 
and unanimously approved.  The meeting adjourned at 6:57 p.m. 
 
 
 
____________________________ 
James D. O’Geary 
Mayor       ATTEST: 
 
      _____________________________ 
      Esther J. McCrackin 
      City Clerk 
 
 



CAF 15-67: 8 June 2015 Council Meeting: Public Hearing 
Page 1 of 15 

 

 
 
 
 
 

 
________________________________________ 

3 June 2015 
 

TO: The Honorable Mayor James D. O’Geary and Members of City Council 
 
FR: Edward A. Wyatt, Interim City Manager 
 
RE: CAF: 15-67: 

Consideration of Approval of Ordinance15-27, Text Amendment Removing Solar 
Farms Use 20.7 in Residential Agricultural (RA) Zoning Districts. 
 
 

Ladies and Gentlemen: 
 
 
Council Retreat Goals Addressed By This Item:   
 
 Key Strategic Objective 3: Revise and align land use and sign ordinance. 
 
Recommendation:   
 
 Approval of Ordinance15-27, Text Amendment Removing Solar Farms Use 20.7 in 

Residential Agricultural (RA) Zoning Districts 
 
 
Executive Summary: 
 
On April 6, 2015, the Planning Board instructed staff to research and draft a text amendment to 
restrict Solar Farms in Residential Agricultural Districts. On May 4, 2015, during a public 
hearing, and after discussions from concerned citizens and potential developers, a motion was 
made and approved by the Planning Board to recommend the text amendment to restrict Solar 
Farms in Residential Agricultural Districts. 
 
Attachments: 
 

1. Ordinance 15-27 
2. Statistics / Solar Farm Time Line  
3. Petition of opposing Solar Farms in Residential Districts 

City Council Action Form 
Office of City Manager 

P. O. Box 1434 
Henderson, NC  27536 

252.430.5701 

    
 
 
 
 
 
Council Meeting: 8 June 15 Regular Meeting 



CAF 15-67: 8 June 2015 Council Meeting: Public Hearing 
Page 2 of 15 

 

ORDINANCE 15-27 
 

After receiving the recommendation of the Planning Board and after duly advertised public 
hearing thereon, Councilperson  introduced the following Ordinance which was seconded 
by Councilperson and read: 

 
AMENDMENT TO ZONING ORDINANCE SECTIONS 310 A TABLE OF PERMITTED 

USES: REMOVING SOLAR FARM USE 20.7 (OFF PREMISES) FROM THE RA 
(RESIDENTIAL & AGRICULTURAL) DISTRICT 

 
The City Council of the City Henderson, North Carolina doth ordain: 
 

Section 1. That Section 310A, Table of Permitted Uses of the Zoning Code 20.7 Solar Farms 
be amended by removing “S” under RA (Non-Urban Residential & Agriculture Use District). 
 
Section 2. The foregoing Ordinance shall be in full force and effect from and after the date 
of its passage. 
 
 The foregoing Ordinance, introduced by ***** and seconded by ***** on this the 8th day 
of June 2015, and having been submitted to a roll call vote, was approved by the following votes: 
Ayes:  Noes:    
 
 
 

Mayor James D. O'Geary 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
Esther J. McCrackin, City Clerk 
 
 
 
Approved to Legal Form: 
 
________________________________ 
D. Rix Edwards, City Attorney 
 
 
 
 
 
 

CAF 15-67 
Attachment #1 



CAF 15-67: 8 June 2015 Council Meeting: Public Hearing 
Page 3 of 15 

 

  
SOLAR FARM STATSTICS FOR MUNICIPLITIES AND COUNTIES STUDY  

Summary Zoning Districts Allowed Zoning Districts Not Allowed 

Residential Districts 
2 out of 15  

 

Iredell, Wake, Yadkin, 
Montgomery, Vance, Guilford, 
Sampson, Perquiman, Town of 

Williamston, Cities of Henderson, 
Greenville & Asheboro 

Town of St Pauls, Forsyth 
County, Granville County 

Industrial Districts  
6 out of 15 

Iredell,  Granville, Montgomery, 
Vance, Guilford, City of 

Henderson 

Wake, Yadkin, Sampson, 
Perquiman, Forsyth County, 

Town of Williamston, Town of St 
Pauls, City Asheboro & 

Greenville 
   

Commercial Districts  
4 out of 15. 

Wake, Granville, Montgomery, 
Vance 

Iredell, Yadkin, Guilford, 
Sampson, Perquiman, Forsyth 
County, Town of Williamston, 

Town of St Pauls, Cities of 
Henderson, Greenville, Asheboro 

 
SOLAR FARM TIME LINE 

 PLANNING 
BOARD 

CITY 
COUNCILC 

DATE CASE DESCRIPTION PETITIONER DECISION DECISION

1/13/2015 PB04-15 Recommendation to rezone 
properties from R-20 (Low Density 
Residential) to R-A 
(Residential/Agricultural Use) 
Zoning District located at 456 
Spring Valley Road, 60.70+/- 
acres, (PIN #’s: 0207 01008, 0207 
01005, 0207 02002A). 

Spring Valley 
Farms 

Approved on 
2/3/15 

Tabled, sent 
back to 

Planning 
Board for 

design 
standard 
requests 

2/24/2015 PB-05-15 Text Amendment for Solar Farms 
 
Ordinance 15-19 creating design 
standards and supplementary 
regulation  
(Draft 1) 

Staff Hearing is 
3/9/15. Decision 

has not been 
decided during 
the March and 
April Meetings. 
They continued 

the item until 
May 4 2015. 

 

2/24/2015 PB-05-15 Text Amendment for Solar Farms 
 
Ordinance 15-19 creating design 
standards and supplementary 
regulation  
(Draft 2) 
 

Staff Approved with 
conditions on 
5/4/2015. See 

minutes for more 
details. 

June 8 
hearing date 
for this item. 

5/4/2015 PB07-15 Text Amendment on not allowing 
solar farms in RA zoning districts. 

Planning 
Board 

Approved on 
5/4/15. 

June 8 
hearing date 
for this item. 

CAF 15-67 
Attachment #2 



CAF 15-67: 8 June 2015 Council Meeting: Public Hearing 
Page 4 of 15 

 

 
 

CAF 15-67 
Attachment #3 



CAF 15-67: 8 June 2015 Council Meeting: Public Hearing 
Page 5 of 15 

 

 
 
 



CAF 15-67: 8 June 2015 Council Meeting: Public Hearing 
Page 6 of 15 

 

 
 
 



CAF 15-67: 8 June 2015 Council Meeting: Public Hearing 
Page 7 of 15 

 

 
 
 



CAF 15-67: 8 June 2015 Council Meeting: Public Hearing 
Page 8 of 15 

 

 
 
 



CAF 15-67: 8 June 2015 Council Meeting: Public Hearing 
Page 9 of 15 

 

 
 
 



CAF 15-67: 8 June 2015 Council Meeting: Public Hearing 
Page 10 of 15 

 

 



CAF 15-67: 8 June 2015 Council Meeting: Public Hearing 
Page 11 of 15 

 

 



CAF 15-67: 8 June 2015 Council Meeting: Public Hearing 
Page 12 of 15 

 

 



CAF 15-67: 8 June 2015 Council Meeting: Public Hearing 
Page 13 of 15 

 

 



CAF 15-67: 8 June 2015 Council Meeting: Public Hearing 
Page 14 of 15 

 

 



CAF 15-67: 8 June 2015 Council Meeting: Public Hearing 
Page 15 of 15 

 

 



CAF 15-60: 8 June 2015 Council Meeting: Public Hearing 
Page 1 of 10 

 

 
 
 
 
 

 
_______________________________________ 

 

4 June 2015 
 

TO: The Honorable Mayor James D. O’Geary and Members of City Council 
 
FR: Ed Wyatt, City Manager 
 
RE: CAF:  15-60: 

 Consideration of Approval of Ordinance 15-05, Amending the Zoning Ordinance Section 
 310A Table of Permitted Uses To Allow Schools with a Special Use Permit in the I2 District. 

 
Recommendation: 
 

 Approval of Ordinance 15-05, Amending the Zoning Ordinance Section 310A Table of Permitted Uses 
To Allow Schools with a Special Use Permit in the I2 District 

 
 
Executive Summary: 
 
A text amendment has been requested to allow schools with a special use permit in the I2 zoning district. Similar 
uses are already permitted in this district.  This will expand the potential use of vacant buildings in this district. 
Each Special Use Permit will only be awarded after review and approval of the Board of Adjustment.  

 
The Planning Board unanimously approved this recommendation during its May 4, 2015 regular meeting.   
 
 
 
Attachments: 
 

1. Ordinance 15-05 
2. Planning Board Minutes 
3. Text Amendment Application 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

City Council Action Form 
Office of City Manager 

P. O. Box 1434 
Henderson, NC  27536 

252.430.5701 

 
 
 
 
Council Meeting:  8 June 2015 Regular Meeting  



CAF 15-60: 8 June 2015 Council Meeting: Public Hearing 
Page 2 of 10 

 

ORDINANCE 15-05 
 

After receiving the recommendation of the Planning Board and after duly advertised public hearing 
thereon, Councilperson  introduced the following Ordinance which was seconded by 
Councilperson and read: 

 
AMENDMENT TO ZONING ORDINANCE SECTIONS 310 A TABLE OF PERMITTED 
USES: ALLOW OTHER SCHOOLS TO BE PERMITED IN THE I2 ZONING DISTRICT 

WITH A SPECIAL USE PERMIT 
 
The City Council of the City Henderson, North Carolina doth ordain: 
 

Section 1. That Section 310A, Table of Permitted Uses of the Zoning Code 3.13 Other Schools be 
amended by adding “S” under I-2 (Industrial Non Park District). Allowing use by Special Use Permit. 
 
Section 2. The foregoing Ordinance shall be in full force and effect from and after the date of its 
passage. 
 
 The foregoing Ordinance, introduced by ***** and seconded by ***** on this the 8th day of 
June 2015, and having been submitted to a roll call vote, was approved by the following votes: Ayes:  
Noes:    
 
 
 

Mayor James D. O'Geary 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
Esther J. McCrackin, City Clerk 
 
 
 
Approved to Legal Form: 
 
________________________________ 
D. Rix Edwards, City Attorney 
 
 
 
 

CAF 15-60 
Attachment #1 



CAF 15-60: 8 June 2015 Council Meeting: Public Hearing 
Page 3 of 10 

 

 
 

         City of Henderson 
   Planning and Community Development Department 
 Post Office Box 1434 / 134 Rose Avenue / Henderson, NC 27536-1434 

Phone: (252) 430-5723         FAX:  (252) 492-7935 
 

DRAFT MINUTES 
HENDERSON PLANNING BOARD 
MONDAY MAY 4, 2015 – 3:30 P.M. 

CITY HALL – COUNCIL CHAMBERS 
 

Members Present – Michael Rainey, Horace Bullock, Arthur Henderson, Jimmie Ayscue, Keith Coffey 
(Alternative), Phil Walters, Marguerite Anduze, Arnold Bullock. 
 
Members Absent – Rick Easter 
 
Staff Present – Development Service Director: Corey Williams, Robert Harris: Planner, Karen Foster: 
Zoning Administrator, City Attorney: Rix Edwards 
 

 
(1) CALL TO ORDER – Meeting was called to order by Chairman Michael Rainey. Roll was called. A 
quorum was present.  
 
(2) APPROVAL OF MINUTES: Minutes were approved and amended for April 6 and April 28, 2015. 
Motion was made by Mr. Horace Bullock and seconded by Mr. Jimmie Ayscue. It was voted approval 8-0.   
 
(3)    PUBLIC HEARING  

 Case (PB-06-15): Public Hearing: Text Amendment Section 310A Table of Permitted Uses: Allow 
schools to be a special use permit in the I2 District. 

 
Mr. Corey Williams (Development Services Director) introduced the text amendment. Staff had no concerns 
with the proposal. 
 
Mr. Rainey opened the public hearing for comments on this matter.  
 
Mr. Johnathan Care (attorney for Vance County Charter School) spoke for the item. Vance County Charter 
School purchased land in an Industrial Zoning District and is expanding the facility to include a high school.  
 
No one spoke against the text amendment.  
 
Mr. Rainey closed the public hearing.  
 
A motion was made by Mr. Jimmie Ayscue and seconded by Mrs. Anduze to approve the text amendment. A 
unanimous vote was reached.  
 
 
 

CAF 15-60 
Attachment #2 



CAF 15-60: 8 June 2015 Council Meeting: Public Hearing 
Page 4 of 10 

 

 

 
Enclosure 4. 
 

CAF 15-60 
Attachment #3 



CAF 15-60: 8 June 2015 Council Meeting: Public Hearing 
Page 5 of 10 

 

 



CAF 15-60: 8 June 2015 Council Meeting: Public Hearing 
Page 6 of 10 

 

 
 
 



CAF 15-60: 8 June 2015 Council Meeting: Public Hearing 
Page 7 of 10 

 

 
 
 



CAF 15-60: 8 June 2015 Council Meeting: Public Hearing 
Page 8 of 10 

 

 
 
 



CAF 15-60: 8 June 2015 Council Meeting: Public Hearing 
Page 9 of 10 

 

 
. 
 



CAF 15-60: 8 June 2015 Council Meeting: Public Hearing 
Page 10 of 10 

 

 



CAF 15-69:  8 June 2015 Council Meeting 
Page 1 of 7 

 

 
 
 
 
 

 
________________________________________ 

2 June 2015 
 

TO: The Honorable Mayor James D. O’Geary and Members of City Council 
 
FR: Edward A. Wyatt, Interim City Manager 
 
RE: CAF:  15-69 

Consideration of Approval of Resolution 15-41 Approving in Concurrence with 
NCDOT the Bid Award to the Lowest Responsible Bidder for the Chavasse 
Widening Project and the Funding of $87,000 for the Excess Expenses over the 
Estimated Cost of $700,000 (WBS Element: 38404) 
 

Ladies and Gentlemen: 
 
Council Goals Addressed By This Item: 
 
 KSO 5: Provide Reliable, Dependable and Environmentally Compliant Infrastructure 

Systems. 
 
Recommendation: 
 
 Approval of Resolution 15-41 Approving in Concurrence with NCDOT the Bid Award to the 

Lowest Responsible Bidder for the Chavasse Widening Project and the Funding of $87,000 
for the Excess Expenses over the Estimated Cost of $700,000 (WBS Element: 38404) 

 
 
Executive Summary 
 
The City of Henderson requested the NCDOT widen a portion of Chavasse Avenue (SR 1228) 
from US#1 Business to Young Avenue.  Through its Legislation delegation in 2007, funding was 
secured in the amount of $700,000, with the stipulation that the City procure the necessary right-
of-way.  Easements were obtained by the City and bids were taken by NCDOT on 20 May 2015. 
 
Upon review of the bids by their staff and removal of several items such as traffic signalization 
and pavement replacement (overlay) which would be paid from different sources within the DOT 
budget, there is a shortage of approximately $87,000 of which the City will be responsible. 
 
In previous information relayed to Council on 28 May 2015, it was suggested a portion of the 
funding come from water distribution, as there is some water main relocation costs associated 

City Council Action Form 
Office of City Manager 

P. O. Box 1434 
Henderson, NC  27536 

252.430.5701 

           
 
 
 
 
 
Council Meeting: 8 June 15 Regular Meeting  



CAF 15-69:  8 June 2015 Council Meeting 
Page 2 of 7 

 

with this project; and some use of Powell Bill funds for the sidewalk costs as it would be an 
allowable use of Powell Bill funds. 
Staff met with NCDOT on June 1, 2015 and discussed the Chavasse Avenue and Beckford Drive 
projects.  NCDOT relayed to the City that we could delay reimbursement until late FY16 or just 
after July 1, 2016, which would help in planning the reimbursement in the upcoming or 
subsequent budgets. 
 
This is a very important project to complete in aiding pedestrians as well as vehicular traffic; 
therefore, staff is recommending approval of Resolution 15-41.  As you are aware, there is 
significant economic development that is ongoing in this area as well. 
 
 
Attachments: 
 

1. Resolution  15-41 
2. Resolution 14-16 



CAF 15-69:  8 June 2015 Council Meeting 
Page 3 of 7 

 

R E S O L U T I O N   15-41 
 

APPROVING IN CONCURRENCE WITH NCDOT THE BID AWARD TO THE 
LOWEST RESPONSIBLE BIDDER FOR THE CHAVASSE WIDENING PROJECT 

AND THE FUNDING OF $87,000 FOR THE EXCESS EXPENSES OVER THE 
ESTIMATED COST OF $700,000 (WBS ELEMENT: 38404) 

 
WHEREAS, the Henderson City Council conducted its Annual Planning Retreat in February 2015 and 

during said Retreat identified eight Key Strategic Objectives (KSO) and Goals; and 
 
WHEREAS, this Resolution addresses KSO 5: To Provide Reliable, Dependable and Environmentally 

Compliant Infrastructure Systems; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City Council (Council) requested funding for the Chavasse Avenue Widening Project 

and received notice in 2007 that funding was secured; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City Council resolved to support completion of the Chavasse Avenue Widening Project in 

2012, via Resolution 12-84, (Attachment A); and 
 
WHEREAS, bids were taken for the project and the estimated costs exceeding $700,000; and 

WHEREAS, the agreement between the NCDOT and the City states the City is responsible for any costs 
exceeding $700,000; and 

WHEREAS, it estimated that these costs are $87,000. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
HENDERSON: That it does hereby approve awarding the bid for completion of the above 
mentioned project and commits to provide funding of approximately $87,000 with the 
understanding that NCDOT will allow the reimbursement to be made up to FY 17 or just after 
July 1, 2016. 

 
The foregoing Resolution 15-41 introduced by Council Member ** and seconded by Council Member ** 
on this the       day of            2015, and having been submitted to a roll call vote, was *** by the following 
votes: YES:  .  NO:  .  ABSTAIN:  .   ABSENT:  . 
       __________________________________ 
       James D. O’Geary, Mayor    
ATTEST: 
______________________________________ 
Esther J. McCrackin, City Clerk 
 
Approved to Legal Form: 
____________________________________   
D. Rix Edwards, City Attorney 

CAF 15-69 
Attachment #1 



CAF 15-69:  8 June 2015 Council Meeting 
Page 4 of 7 

 

R E S O L U T I O N   12-84 
 
 

A RESOLUTION SUPPORTING COMPLETION OF THE WIDENING OF 
 SR 1228 (CHAVASSE AVENUE) FROM US 1 BUSINESS (RALEIGH ROAD)  

TO SR 1143(S. WILLIAM STREET) 
 
 

WHEREAS, the Henderson City Council (Council) conducted its Annual Planning Retreat in 
January 2012, and during said Retreat identified eight Key Strategic Objectives (KSO) 
and Goals; and 

 
WHEREAS, this Resolution addresses one of these Key Strategic Objectives as follows: KSO 5: 

To Provide Reliable, Dependable and Environmentally Compliant Infrastructure Systems. 
 

WHEREAS,  the City Council resolved on 6 November 2006 to request release of funding in the 
total amount of $700,000 to complete the widening of Chavasse Avenue;  and 

 
WHEREAS, the NCDOT prepared the design for the project and utility relocation was 

performed; and 
 
WHEREAS, the design prepared by the NCDOT includes the installation of curb and gutter, 

sidewalk on the north side and widening to a width of 36’-0 (back to back of curb); and 
 
WHEREAS, the City of Henderson City Council does understand that the Chavasse Avenue 

crossing would be closed as if the High Speed Rail project proceeds; and 
 
WHEREAS, the remaining portion of Chavasse Avenue would still be used by nearby businesses 

and homes, as well as connecting future sidewalks to a new pedestrian crossing which 
would be built as a result of the High Speed Rail project. 

 
NOW, THERFORE BE IT RESOLVED BY THE HENDERSON CITY COUNCIL THAT IT 

DOES HEREBY APPROVE supporting the completion of the Chavasse Avenue 
widening project (SR 1228) by the NCDOT as indicated in Attachment A to this 
Resolution, and is appreciative of the NCDOT in retaining these funds to complete said 
project. 

 
 

Resolution 15-41 
Attachment A 



CAF 15-69:  8 June 2015 Council Meeting 
Page 5 of 7 

 

The foregoing Resolution 12-84, upon motion of Council Member Inscoe and second by Council 
Member Rainey, and having been submitted to a roll call vote received the following votes and 
was APPROVED on this the 8th day of October 2012:  YES:  Kearney, Coffey, Inscoe, Rainey, 
Peace-Jenkins, Daeke and Daye.  NO:  None.  ABSTAIN: None.  ABSENT: Brown. 
 
 

_____________________________ 
James D. O’Geary, Mayor 

 
ATTEST: 
 
_______________________________ 
Esther J. McCrackin, City Clerk 
 
 
Approved to Legal Form: 
 
________________________________ 
John H. Zollicoffer, Jr., City Attorney 
 
 
Reference:  Minute Book 42, p.618, CAF 12-124 



CAF 15-69:  8 June 2015 Council Meeting 
Page 6 of 7 

 

R E S O L U T I O N   14-16 
 

AUTHORIZING EXECUTION OF AGREEMENT WITH THE NORTH 
CAROLINA DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION (NCDOT) 

RELATIVE TO THE CHAVASSE AVENUE WIDENING PROJECT (WBS 
ELEMENT: 38404)  

 
WHEREAS, the Henderson City Council (Council) conducted its Annual Planning Retreat in 

February 2014 and during said Retreat identified eight Key Strategic Objectives (KSO) 
and Goals; and 

 
WHEREAS, this Resolution addresses KSO 5: To Provide Reliable, Dependable and 

Environmentally Compliant Infrastructure Systems; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City Council (Council) requested funding for the Chavasse Avenue Widening 

Project and received notice in 2007 that funding was secured; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City Council resolved to support completion of the Chavasse Avenue Widening 

Project in 2012, via Resolution 12-84; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City is responsible for obtaining any necessary easements and/or right of ways 

to construct the project; and 
 
WHEREAS, the NCDOT has determined that it is necessary to execute an agreement with the 

City which outlines the responsibility of the City and NCDOT; and 
 
WHEREAS, bids have not been taken for the project and there could be costs exceeding 

$700,000; and 

WHEREAS, the agreement states that the City (municipality) would be responsible for any cost 
exceeding $700,000, unless other sources are identified within NCDOT or other funding 
sources; and 

WHEREAS, the agreement is approved contingent on review and final approval of the bids by 
the City prior to NCDOT awarding a contract. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
HENDERSON That it is supportive of this project and approves it subject to the 
following conditions: 

  
o The City shall be held harmless for damage and/or liability in connection with 

construction except for Right of Way acquisition; and   
 



CAF 15-69:  8 June 2015 Council Meeting 
Page 7 of 7 

 

o The City shall be entitled to review the bids once they have been received by 
NCDOT, and NCDOT has advised the City of the amount of local financial 
contribution necessary, if any, for the project to be considered for bid award; and 

 
o Upon receipt of said information, City administration shall advise the City 

Council of same and at that time, Council will approve a Resolution supporting 
the project and any financial contributions so required by NCDOT, or approve a 
Resolution declining participation on the project. 

 
The foregoing Resolution 14-16 introduced by Council Member Inscoe and seconded by Council 
Member Coffey, on this the 14th day of July 2014, and having been submitted to a roll call vote, 
was APPROVED by the following votes: YES: Inscoe, Rainey, Peace-Jenkins, Daeke, Simmons, 
Daye and Coffey.  NO: None.  ABSTAIN: None.  ABSENT: Kearney. 
 
 
       __________________________________ 
       James D. O’Geary, Mayor 
    
ATTEST: 
 
______________________________________ 
Esther J. McCrackin, City Clerk 
 
Approved to Legal Form: 
 
____________________________________   
John H. Zollicoffer, Jr., City Attorney 
 
(Reference:  Minute Book 43, p.280) 

 

 



CAF 15-68: 8 June 2015 Council Meeting 
Page 1 of 4 

 

 
 
 
 
 

 
________________________________________ 

28 May 2015 
 

TO: The Honorable Mayor Pete O’Geary and Members of City Council 
 
FR: Ed Wyatt, Interim City Manager 
 
RE: CAF: 15-68 

Consideration of Approval of Ordinance 15-29, FY15 Budget Amendment #29, 
Amending the General, Water, Sewer & Regional Water Funds to Reflect the 
Reimbursement to the City by Builders Mutual Insurance Company for Repairs to 
a Damaged Water Main. 

 
Ladies and Gentlemen: 
 
Recommendation: 
 
 Approval of Ordinance 15-29, FY 15 Budget Amendment #29, Amending the General, 

Water, Sewer & Regional Water Funds to Reflect the Reimbursement to the City by Builders 
Mutual Insurance Company for Repairs to a Damaged Water Main. 

 
 
Executive Summary 
 
On February 3, 2015, a 30” regional water main was bored into by a contractor performing 
underground utility work along the I-85 corridor.  There was a major expense incurred by the 
City to successfully repair this main.  The invoice was submitted to the contractor and payment 
was received in the amount of $60,092.84.  This budget amendment serves to appropriate the 
funds to the correct accounts. 
 
Attachments: 
 1.  Ordinance 15-29 

City Council Action Form 
Office of City Manager 

P. O. Box 1434 
Henderson, NC  27536 

252.430.5701 

 
 
 
 
 
Council Meeting: 8 June 15 Reg. Meeting 



CAF 15-68: 8 June 2015 Council Meeting 
Page 2 of 4 

 

O R D I N A N C E 15-29 
 

FY 2014-2015 BUDGET AMENDMENT #29 
AMENDING THE GENERAL, WATER, SEWER AND REGIONAL 

WATER FUNDS TO REFLECT THE REIMBURSEMENT TO THE CITY 
BY BUILDERS MUTUAL INSURANCE COMPANY FOR DAMAGES TO 

THE CITY’S WATER MAIN 
 

WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Henderson on 11 June 2014, adopted its FY 14-15 
Operating Budget; and 

 
WHEREAS, it is necessary to amend the various revenue and expense accounts of the annual 

operating budget from time-to-time, said amendment incorporated in this Ordinance; and  
 
NOW THEREFORE BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of The City of Henderson, that 

the following Budget Ordinance Amendment be approved and said Ordinance shall be 
effective immediately upon approval of the City Council: 

CAF 15-68 
ATTACHMENT #1 



CAF 15-68: 8 June 2015 Council Meeting 
Page 3 of 4 

 

Approved Current
Department Line Item Code 1-Jul-14 Budget Amendment Revised

 Miscellaneous Revenue 10-100-455010 8,600$          11,100$         1,480$            12,580$                      
-$             -$               -$                -$                           

Total 8,600$          11,100$         1,480$            12,580$                      
 

Approved Current
Department Line Item Code 1-Jul-14 Budget Amendment Revised

Street Overtime Pay 10-570-500800 6,000$          16,200$         900$               17,100$                      
Non-Departmental Insurance Reserve 10-660-900226 -$             20,200$         580$               20,780$                      
   -$             -$               -$                -$                           

 Total 6,000$          36,400$         1,480$            37,880$                      
Variance -$               

Approved Current
Department Line Item Code 1-Jul-14 Budget Amendment Revised

 Miscellaneous Revenue 30-300-455010 5,000$          5,000$           29,130$          34,130$                      
Water Revenue 30-300-433410 2,590,700$    2,590,700$     15,030$          2,605,730$                  

Total 2,595,700$    2,595,700$     44,160$          2,639,860$                  
 

Approved Current
Department Line Item Code 1-Jul-14 Budget Amendment Revised

Engineering Overtime 30-720-500800 1,000$          300$              200$               500$                           
Water Distribution Overtime 30-818-500800 20,000$        20,000$         1,200$            21,200$                      
Water Distribution Departmental Supplies 30-818-503300 18,000$        17,600$         7,100$            24,700$                      
Water Distribution Capital Outlay < $5,000 30-818-507400 4,500$          4,500$           17,800$          22,300$                      
Non-Departmental Insurance Reserve 30-660-900226 12,000$        900$              17,860$          18,760$                      

 Total 55,500$        43,300$         44,160$          87,460$                      
Variance -$               

Approved Current
Department Line Item Code 1-Jul-14 Budget Amendment Revised

 Miscellaneous Revenue 31-310-455010 1,000$          1,000$           6,210$            7,210$                        
-$             -$               -$                -$                           

Total 1,000$          1,000$           6,210$            7,210$                        
 

Approved Current
Department Line Item Code 1-Jul-14 Budget Amendment Revised

HWRF Overtime 31-822-500800 7,500$          15,500$         400$               15,900$                      
HWRF Capital Outlay < $5,000 31-822-507405 29,400$        29,400$         2,000$            31,400$                      
Sewer Collections Overtime 31-828-500800 10,000$        16,000$         1,300$            17,300$                      
Sewer Collections I&I Overtime 31-829-500800 6,000$          10,200$         800$               
Non-Departmental Insurance Reserve 31-660-900226 -$             19,000$         1,710$            20,710$                      
  Total 52,900$        90,100$         6,210$            96,310$                      

Variance -$               

Approved Current
Department Line Item Code 1-Jul-14 Budget Amendment Revised

 Miscellaneous Revenue 64-640-455010 7,000$          7,000$           8,240$            15,240$                      
-$             -$               -$                -$                           

Total 7,000$          7,000$           8,240$            15,240$                      
 

Approved Current
Department Line Item Code 1-Jul-14 Budget Amendment Revised

KLRWS Departmental Supplies 64-900-503300 15,000$        15,000$         6,240$            21,240$                      
KLRWS Capital Outlay < $5,000 64-900-507400 4,000$          4,000$           1,000$            5,000$                        
Non-Departmental Insurance Reserve 64-660-900226 6,000$          2,300$           1,000$            3,300$                        

  25,000$        21,300$         8,240$            29,540$                      
Variance -$               

Ordinance 15-29

FUNDS: 
10: General Fund; 30: Water Fund; 31: 
Sewer Fund; 64: Regional Water Fund

FY 14-15 Budget Amendment #29

 

10: GENERAL FUND REVENUES

31: SEWER FUND REVENUES

30: WATER FUND REVENUES

30: WATER FUND EXPENDITURES

10: GENERAL FUND EXPENDITURES

31: SEWER FUND EXPENDITURES

64: REGIONAL WATER FUND REVENUES

64: REGIONAL FUND EXPENDITURES

To amend the budget as a result of the check received from Builders Mutual Insurance 
Company for repairs that had to be made to the City's 30" water main as the result of damage 
incurred when Bucks Communication (contractor) accidentally bored through the City's main 
while performing underground utility work along the I-85 corridor.

Reference: Notes:
CAF: 15-68; Ord 15-29; BA #29 

City Council Meeting 8 June 2015

 



CAF 15-68: 8 June 2015 Council Meeting 
Page 4 of 4 

 

The foregoing Ordinance 15-29 upon motion of Council Member ** and second by Council 
Member ***, and having been submitted to a roll call vote and received the following votes and 
was *** on this the 8 day of June 2015:  YES: ***.  NO:  **.   ABSTAIN:  **.   ABSENT:  **.             
 

___________________________________ 
James D. O’Geary, Mayor 

 
ATTEST: 
 
_______________________________ 
Esther J. McCrackin, City Clerk 
 
Reference:  Minute Book 42 p. *** 
 
____________ 
 
STATE OF NORTH CAROLINA 
CITY OF HENDERSON 
 
I, Esther J. McCrackin, the duly appointed, qualified City Clerk of the City of Henderson, do 
hereby certify the attached is a true and exact copy of Ordinance 15-29 adopted by the 
Henderson, City Council in Regular Session on 8 June 2015 (Minute Book ** p.**). This 
Ordinance is recorded in Ordinance Book 9, p. ***. 
 
Witness my hand and corporate seal of the City, this *** day of June 2015. 
 
_________________________ 
Esther J. McCrackin 
City Clerk 
City of Henderson, North Carolina 
 
 
 
 
Reviewed by:  _______________________________ Date:  _______________________ 
                         Katherine C. Brafford, Finance Director 
 
Reviewed by:  _______________________________ Date: _______________________ 
  Edward A. Wyatt, Interim City Manager  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



CAF 15-71: 8 June 2015 Council Meeting 
Page 1 of 7 

 

 
 
 
 
 

 
________________________________________ 

 
2 June 2015 

 
TO: The Honorable Mayor James D. O’Geary and Members of City Council 
 
FR: Edward A. Wyatt, Interim City Manager 
 
RE: CAF: 15-71 

Consideration of Approval of Ordinance 15-31 FY 15 Budget Amendment #30, 
Closing Out the 2013 BJA Bulletproof Vests Grant, the 2014 BJA Grant, and the 
2014 Governor’s Crime Commission Viper/MDT Upgrade Project Grant 
  

Ladies and Gentlemen: 
 
Recommendation:   
 
 Approval of Ordinance 15-31, FY 15 Budget Amendment #30, Closing Out the 2013 BJA 

Bulletproof Vests Grant, the 2014 BJA Grant, and the 2014 Governor’s Crime Commission 
Viper/MDT Upgrade Project Grant 
 
 

Executive Summary: 
 
Capital Improvement Project and/or Grant Project funds for active capital projects and grant 
projects are open for the life of the grant or project.  Once the project or grant has been 
completed, it is necessary to “close out” these funds.  Ordinance 15-31 officially closes out the 
following Grant projects: 

Fund 55-208: 2013 BJA Bulletproof Vests Grant; The Resolution to accept this grant 
was approved by Council at its meeting on May 13, 2013.  This grant was awarded to 
assist the Police Department with the purchase of bulletproof vests. The grant budget was 
initially established by FY 2014 BA #12 which was approved by Council at its meeting 
on September 23, 2013. Grant match funds in the amount of $3,177 supplemented the grant 
with $2,500 of those match funds coming from the NCLM Bulletproof Vests Grant program, 
bringing the total project cost to $7,100.  All grant funds have now been received and the 
grant is ready to be closed out. 

 

City Council Action Form 
Office of City Manager 

P. O. Box 1434 
Henderson, NC  27536 

252.430.5701 

    
 
 
 
 
 
Council Meeting: 8 June 15 Regular Meeting 



CAF 15-71: 8 June 2015 Council Meeting 
Page 2 of 7 

 

Fund 55-209: 2014 BJA Grant; The Resolution to accept this grant was approved by 
Council at its meeting on August 11, 2014.  The grant budget was initially established by 
FY 2015 BA #3 which was approved by Council at that same meeting.  This grant is the 
result of an annual submission that shares funding between the City and the County in a 
60/40 allocation, respectively. This year’s allocations were in the amounts of $10,161 
(City) and $6,774 (County). The City’s portion was used to purchase in-car mobile 
camera audio/video recorders. The Vance County Sheriff’s Office was to have used its 
portion of allocated funds to purchase law enforcement equipment.  All grant funds have 
now been received and the grant is ready to be closed out. 

Fund 55-210: 2014 Governor’s Crime Commission VIPER/MDT Upgrade Grant; 
The Resolution to accept this grant was approved by Council at its meeting on September 
8, 2014. The grant budget was initially established by FY 2015 BA #6 which was 
approved by Council at that same meeting. This grant was used to purchase eight (8) 
Mobile Data Terminals and three (3) VIPER Radios for the Police Department.  All grant 
funds have now been received and the grant is ready to be closed out. 

 
Attachments: 
 

1. Ordinance 15-31  
 



CAF 15-71: 8 June 2015 Council Meeting 
Page 3 of 7 

 

O R D I N A N C E   15-31 
FY 2014-2015 BUDGET AMENDMENT # 30 

CLOSING OUT THE FOLLOWING GRANT PROJECTS: 
 55-208: 2013 BJA BULLETPROOF VESTS GRANT 

55-209: 2014 BJA GRANT 
55-210: 2014 GOVERNOR’S CRIME COMMISSION  

VIPER/MDT UPGRADE PROJECT 
 
WHEREAS, the City Council (Council) of the City of Henderson on 11 June 2014 adopted the 

FY14-15 Annual Operating Budget; and 

WHEREAS, pursuant to NC General Statues, the Council has created and uses Capital 
Improvements Projects and Grant Projects funds for active capital projects and grant 
project funds; and 

WHEREAS, the capital project and grant project funds are open for the life of the project and/or 
grant, they are nevertheless managed on a day-to-day basis and through the annual fiscal 
year cycle; and 

 
WHEREAS, it is necessary to amend the various revenue and expense accounts of the annual 

operating and capital improvements and grant project budgets from time-to-time. 

NOW THEREFORE BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of The City of Henderson, that 
the following Ordinance be approved, and said Ordinance shall be effective immediately 
upon approval of the City Council: 



CAF 15-71: 8 June 2015 Council Meeting 
Page 4 of 7 

 

FUNDS:

PROJECT:

Initial Budget Current
23-Sep-13 Budget Amendment Revised

BJA Grant 55-208-458218 3,923$          3,923$           -$                3,923$                        
55-208-461010 6,653$          6,653$           -$                6,653$                        

Total 10,576$        10,576$         -$                10,576$                      
10,576$                      

Initial Budget Current
23-Sep-13 Budget Amendment Revised

55-208-503605 10,576$        10,576$         (3,476)$           7,100$                        
55-208-561010 -$             -$               3,476$            3,476$                        

Total 10,576$        10,576$         -$                10,576$                      
10,576$                      

Variance -$               

Approved Current
1-Jul-14 Budget Amendment Revised

   -$             -$               -$                -$                           
 -$             -$               -$                -$                           

Total -$             -$               -$                -$                           
-$                           

Approved Current
1-Jul-14 Budget Amendment Revised

Asset Forfeitures Grant Match Funds 10-512-509901 20,000$        9,279$           3,476$            12,755$                      
Trans to:  55 Grants Funds 10-512-561055 -$             10,721$         (3,476)$           7,245$                        

  -$             -$               -$                -$                           
 -$             -$               -$                -$                           

Total 20,000$        20,000$         -$                20,000$                      
20,000$                      

Variance -$               

CAF 15-71; Ord 15-31; BA #30  
Council Meeting 8 June 2015

Part 1 of the Budget Ordinance serves to amend the project budget and transfer unspent funds back to Asset 
Forfeitures

CAF 13-50-A will ask for grant acceptance.  Ord 13-61 and 
BA #12 will establish the grant project budget upon 

acceptance.  Council Meeting 23 Sept 2013 Approve grant acceptance and establish the grant project budget

 

Bullet Proof Vests

FUND 10: GENERAL FUND EXPENDITURES

 

Reference: Notes:
CAF 13-50; Resolution 13-37  
Council Meeting 13 May 2013 Grant submission authorized

Ordinance 15-31

55-208 BJA Bullet Proof Vests Grant 2013 

55-208 BJA Bullet Proof Vests Grant 2013 Expenditures

FUND 10: GENERAL FUND REVENUES

55: Grants Fund & 10: General Fund FY 14-15 Budget Amendment #30

Part 1

55-208 BJA Bullet Proof Vests Grant 2013 Revenues

Trans To:  10 General Fund

Trans Fr: 10 General Fund 

 
 

FUNDS:

PROJECT:

Initial Budget Current
23-Sep-13 Budget Amendment Revised

BJA Grant 55-208-458218 3,923$          3,923$           (3,923)$           -$                           
55-208-461010 6,653$          6,653$           (6,653)$           -$                           

Total 10,576$        10,576$         (10,576)$         -$                           
-$                           

Initial Budget Current
23-Sep-13 Budget Amendment Revised

55-208-503605 10,576$        7,100$           (7,100)$           -$                           
55-208-561010 -$             3,476$           (3,476)$           -$                           

Total 10,576$        10,576$         (10,576)$         -$                           
-$                           

Variance -$               

55-208 BJA Bullet Proof Vests Grant 2013 Revenues

Trans Fr: 10 General Fund 

55-208 BJA Bullet Proof Vests Grant 2013 Expenditures
Bullet Proof Vests

Trans To:  10 General Fund

Reference: Notes:
CAF 13-50; Resolution 13-37  
Council Meeting 13 May 2013 Grant submission authorized

CAF 13-50-A will ask for grant acceptance.  Ord 13-61 and 
BA #12 will establish the grant project budget upon 

acceptance.  Council Meeting 23 Sept 2013 Approve grant acceptance and establish the grant project budget

CAF 15-71; Ord 15-31; BA #30  
Council Meeting 8 June 2015

Part 1 of the Budget Ordinance serves to amend the project budget and transfer unspent funds back to Asset 
Forfeitures

CAF 15-71; Ord 15-31; BA #30  
Council Meeting 8 June 2015 Part 2 of this Budget Ordinance serves to close the grant project

Ordinance 15-31
55: Grants Fund & 10: General Fund FY 14-15 Budget Amendment #30

55-208 BJA Bullet Proof Vests Grant 2013 Part 2

 
 



CAF 15-71: 8 June 2015 Council Meeting 
Page 5 of 7 

 

 

FUNDS:

PROJECT:

Initial Budget Current
11-Aug-14 Budget Amendment Revised

55-209-458218 55-209-458218 16,935$        16,935$         (16,935)$         -$                           
55-209-461010 -$             4,299$           (4,299)$           -$                           

Total 16,935$        21,234$         (21,234)$         -$                           
-$                           

Initial Budget Current
11-Aug-14 Budget Amendment Revised

55-209-507400 10,161$        14,460$         (14,460)$         -$                           
55-209-509031 6,774$          6,774$           (6,774)$           -$                           

Total 16,935$        21,234$         (21,234)$         -$                           
-$                           

Variance -$               

CAF 15-71; Ord 15-31; BA #30  
Council Meeting 8 June 2015 Part 3 of this Budget Ordinance serves to close this grant project

Reference: Notes:

CAF 14-61-A; Resolution 14-39-A; Ord 14-39; BA #3  
Council Meeting 11 Aug 2014

This ordinance serves to establish the grant project for the 2014 BJA Grant.  These funds are to be shared 
with Vance County on a 60/40 split, City/County respectively.  The City's portion will be used to purchase 
replacement in-car cameras and the County's portion will be used to purchase law enforcement equipment.

55-209: 2014 BJA Grant Expenditures
Capital Outlay < $5,000

VC Sheriff Dept Share

55-209: 2014 BJA Grant Revenues

Trans Fr: 10 General Fund 

Ordinance 15-31
55: Grants Fund & 10: General Fund FY 14-15 Budget Amendment #30

55-209 2014 GJA Grant Part 3

 
 

FUNDS:

PROJECT:

Initial Budget Current
8-Sep-14 Budget Amendment Revised

Gov Crime Comm Grant 55-210-458204 23,907$        23,907$         (157)$              23,750$                      
55-210-461010 7,969$          7,969$           (52)$                7,917$                        

Total 31,876$        31,876$         (209)$              31,667$                      
31,667$                      

Initial Budget Current
8-Sep-14 Budget Amendment Revised

55-210-507400 31,876$        31,876$         (209)$              31,667$                      
     

Total 31,876$        31,876$         (209)$              31,667$                      
31,667$                      

Variance -$               

Approved Current
1-Jul-14 Budget Amendment Revised

   -$             -$               -$                -$                           
 -$             -$               -$                -$                           

Total -$             -$               -$                -$                           
-$                           

Approved Current
1-Jul-14 Budget Amendment Revised

Asset Forfeitures Grant Match Funds 10-512-509901 20,000$        12,755$         52$                 12,807$                      
Trans to:  55 Grants Funds 10-512-561055 -$             7,245$           (52)$                7,193$                        

  -$             -$               -$                -$                           
 -$             -$               -$                -$                           

Total 20,000$        20,000$         -$                20,000$                      
20,000$                      

Variance -$               

55-210 2014 Gov Crime Comm VIPER/MDT Upgrade Grant Revenues

Trans Fr: 10 General Fund 

55-210 2014 Gov Crime Comm VIPER/MDT Upgrade Gr Expenditures

Capital Equipment < $5,000
 

Reference: Notes:

FUND 10: GENERAL FUND REVENUES

 

FUND 10: GENERAL FUND EXPENDITURES

 

CAF 14-21-A; Resolution 14-13-A  
Council Meeting 8 Sept 2014

This amendment established the project budget for a Governor's Crime Commission Grant awarded to the 
Henderson Police Dept. The local project budget will be $31,876, of which 75%, or $23,907 will come from 
grant funds, with the remaining 25% grant match of $7,969 to be provided through Federal Asset Forfeiture 
Funds.  The grant will be used to purchase new mobile data terminals and VIPER radios.

CAF 15-71; Ord 15-31; BA #30  
Council Meeting 8 June 2015

Part 1 of the Budget Ordinance serves to amend the project budget and transfer unspent funds back to Asset 
Forfeitures

Ordinance 15-31
55: Grants Fund & 10: General Fund FY 14-15 Budget Amendment #30

55-210 2014 Gov Crime Comm VIPER/MDT 
Upgrade Grant

Part 4

 



CAF 15-71: 8 June 2015 Council Meeting 
Page 6 of 7 

 

 

FUNDS:

PROJECT:

Initial Budget Current
8-Sep-14 Budget Amendment Revised

Gov Crime Comm Grant 55-210-458204 23,907$        23,750$         (23,750)$         -$                           
55-210-461010 7,969$          7,917$           (7,917)$           -$                           

Total 31,876$        31,667$         (31,667)$         -$                           
-$                           

Initial Budget Current
8-Sep-14 Budget Amendment Revised

55-210-507400 31,876$        31,667$         (31,667)$         -$                           
     

Total 31,876$        31,667$         (31,667)$         -$                           
-$                           

Variance -$               

CAF 14-21-A; Resolution 14-13-A  
Council Meeting 8 Sept 2014

This amendment established the project budget for a Governor's Crime Commission Grant awarded to the 
Henderson Police Dept. The local project budget will be $31,876, of which 75%, or $23,907 will come from 
grant funds, with the remaining 25% grant match of $7,969 to be provided through Federal Asset Forfeiture 
Funds.  The grant will be used to purchase new mobile data terminals and VIPER radios.

CAF 15-71; Ord 15-31; BA #30  
Council Meeting 8 June 2015

Part 1 of the Budget Ordinance serves to amend the project budget and transfer unspent funds back to Asset 
Forfeitures

CAF 15-71; Ord 15-31; BA #30  
Council Meeting 8 June 2015 Part 2 of the Budget Ordinance serves to close out the project budget.

Reference: Notes:

55-210 2014 Gov Crime Comm VIPER/MDT Upgrade Gr Expenditures

Capital Equipment < $5,000
 

55-210 2014 Gov Crime Comm VIPER/MDT Upgrade Grant Revenues

Trans Fr: 10 General Fund 

Ordinance 15-31
55: Grants Fund & 10: General Fund FY 14-15 Budget Amendment #30

55-210 2014 Gov Crime Comm VIPER/MDT 
Upgrade Grant

Part 5

 
 

The foregoing Ordinance 15-31, upon motion of Council Member ** and second by Council 
Member ***, and having been submitted to a roll call vote and received the following votes and 
was *** on this the ________day of __________ 2015:  YES: ***.  NO:  **.   ABSTAIN:  **.   
ABSENT:  **.             

___________________________________ 
James D. O’Geary, Mayor 

ATTEST: 

_______________________________ 
Esther J. McCrackin, City Clerk  
Reference:  Minute Book ** p. ***;  



CAF 15-71: 8 June 2015 Council Meeting 
Page 7 of 7 

 

___________ 

STATE OF NORTH CAROLINA CITY OF HENDERSON 

I, Esther J. McCrackin, the duly appointed, qualified City Clerk of the City of Henderson, do 
hereby certify the attached is a true and exact copy of Ordinance 15-31 adopted by the 
Henderson, City Council in Regular Session on __________ _____________ 2015 (Minute Book 
** p.**). This Ordinance is recorded in Ordinance Book **, p. ***. 

Witness my hand and corporate seal of the City, this *** day of __________2015. 

_________________________ 
Esther J. McCrackin 
City Clerk 
City of Henderson, North Carolina 
 
Reviewed by:  _______________________________ Date:  _______________________ 
                         Katherine C. Brafford, Finance Director 
 
Reviewed by:  _______________________________ Date: _______________________ 
  Edward A. Wyatt, Interim City Manager 

 



CAF 15-49-A: 8 June 2015 Council Meeting 
Page 1 of 4 

 
 
 
 
 
 

______________________________________ 
22 May 2015 

 
TO: The Honorable Mayor James D O’Geary and Members of City Council 
 
FR: Edward A. Wyatt, City Manager 
 
RE: CAF:  15-49-A   
 Consideration of Approval of Resolution 15-30-A, Accepting an Offer of $10,000 for 
 the Property Known as the Old City Garage Pursuant to N.C.G.S. §160A-269 

 
 

Ladies and Gentlemen: 
 
Council Goals Addressed By This Item: 
 
Recommendation: 
 
 Approval of Resolution 15-49-A, Accepting an Offer of $10,000 for the Property Known as the 

Old City Garage Pursuant to  N.C.G.S. §160A-269 
 
 

Executive Summary 
 
On May 11, 2015, City Council passed Resolution 15-30, proposing to accept said offer as an 
opening bid and authorizing the advertisement for upset bids of said offer.    
 
A notice was published by the City in the Daily Dispatch on May 16, 2015 describing the property, 
the amount and terms of the offer and announcing that upset bids could be presented through May 
26, 2015.  As no upset bids were offered during the 10 day period, it is the recommended that 
Council accept the offer from Cameron Mitchell of $10,000 for the above mentioned parcel.  The 
acceptance of the offer is contingent on the preparation of a plat by a North Carolina licensed 
surveyor by the buyer along with installation of a chain link fence approved by the City within a 
reasonable time after closing.  Buyer will also be responsible for the cost of the advertising 
associated with the upset bid procedure. 
 
Attachments: 

1. Resolution 15-30-A 
2. Resolution 15-30  

City Council Action Form 
Office of City Manager 

P. O. Box 1434 
Henderson, NC  27536 

252.430.5701 

 
 
 
 
Council Meeting: 8 Jun 2015 Regular Meeting 



CAF 15-49-A: 8 June 2015 Council Meeting 
Page 2 of 4 

RESOLUTION 15-30-A 
ACCEPTANCE OF A NEGOTIATED OFFER FOR A PORTION  

OF THE PROPERTY KNOWN AS THE OLD CITY GARAGE  
IN ACCORDANCE WITH N.C.G.S. §160A-269 

 
 

WHEREAS, the City owns a tract of land identified by Vance County Tax Parcel Identification 
Number 0097 03 008 and described in the records of the Vance County Registrar at Deeds at 
Book 200, Page 464; and 

 
WHEREAS, Mr. Cameron Mitchell has offered to purchase approximately a .960 acre portion 

(Portion) of this land for $10,000 and has deposited $500 with the City Clerk, the requisite 
good faith deposit as required by Statute; and 

 
WHEREAS, on May 11, 2015, the City Council passed Resolution 15-30 proposing to accept said 

offer and authorized the advertisement of said negotiated offer for upset bids pursuant to G. 
S. §160A-269; and 

 
WHEREAS, a notice was duly published by the City in The Daily Dispatch on the 16th day of May, 

2015, containing a description of the property, the amount and terms of the offer and 
notifying that within 10 days any person may raise the bid in accordance with the Statutes; 
and 

 
WHEREAS, the 10 day period for upset bids thereafter expired on May 26, 2015; and  
 
WHEREAS, no further upset bids were made during said period of time and the City Council finds 

as a fact that the offer of $10,000.00 is fair and adequate and is as much as said property 
could reasonably be expected to bring and further finds as a fact that it would be in the best 
interest of the City to accept said offer for said property. 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Henderson that: 
 

(1) The offer of Cameron Mitchell to purchase the land hereinabove described “As Is” for 
the sum of $10,000.00 be accepted by the City. 

(2) That Mr. Mitchell have a survey conducted to specifically identify the .960 acre 
portion being purchased. 

(3) Upon completion of the survey, the Mayor may execute a Non-Warranty Deed on 
behalf of the City, written by the City Attorney, conveying said property “As Is” to 
Mr. Cameron Mitchell and are further authorized to deliver said Deed to the purchaser 
upon the payment to the City of the $10,000.00 purchase price in cash (including the 
deposit heretofore paid to the City) at a mutually agreeable closing date within 20 days 
hereafter. 



CAF 15-49-A: 8 June 2015 Council Meeting 
Page 3 of 4 

The foregoing Resolution 15-30-A, upon motion of Council Member ** and second by Council 
Member **, and having been submitted to a roll call vote received the following votes and was 
***** on this the *** day of **** 2015:  YES:   .  NO:   .       ABSTAIN:   .          ABSENT:   . 

 
_____________________________ 
James D. O’Geary, Mayor 

ATTEST: 
_______________________________ 
Esther J. McCrackin, City Clerk 
 
Approved to Legal Form: 
________________________________ 
D. Rix Edwards, City Attorney 
 
Reference:  Minute Book 43, pp. **, CAF 15-49-A 

 
 
 



CAF 15-49-A: 8 June 2015 Council Meeting 
Page 4 of 4 

R E S O L U T I O N   15-30 
 

PROPOSAL TO ACCEPT A NEGOTIATED OFFER FOR A PORTION OF THE FORMER 
CITY OF HENDERSON, NORTH CAROLINA (CITY) GARAGE PROPERTY IN 
ACCORDANCE WITH NORTH CAROLINA GENERAL STATUTE §160A-269 

(STATUTE) 
 

WHEREAS, the Henderson City Council (Council) conducted its Annual Planning Retreat in January 2015, 
and during this retreat identified eight Key Strategic Objectives (KSOs) and Goals; and 

 
WHEREAS, the City owns a tract of land identified by Vance County Tax Parcel Identification Number 

0097 03 008 and described in the records of the Vance County Registrar at Deeds at Book 200, Page 
464; and 

 
WHEREAS, Mr. Cameron Mitchell has offered to purchase approximately a .960 acre portion (Portion) of 

this land for $10,000 and has deposited $500 with the City Clerk, as required by Statute; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City proposes to accept this offer in accordance with the Statute.  
 
NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED BY THE COUNCIL THAT: 
 

1. A notice be published that the Council proposes to accept this offer.  
 

2. The City Clerk is authorized to receive upset bids in accordance with the Statute.  
 

 3. City Council may at any time reject any and all offers.  
 
 4. Once all N.C.G.S. requirements are met, an offer is accepted, and a survey completed, the Portion 

shall be conveyed in fee simple by the City to the purchaser within 20 days of acceptance and a non-
warranty deed delivered to the purchaser once the complete purchase price is paid.  

 
The foregoing Resolution 15-30, upon motion of Council Member Rainey and second by Council Member 
Inscoe, and having been submitted to a roll call vote received the following votes and was APPROVED on 
this the 11th day of May 2015:  YES: Kearney, Coffey, Inscoe, Rainey, Daeke, Simmons and Daye.  NO: 
None.  ABSTAIN: None.  ABSENT: Peace-Jenkins. 

 
_____________________________ 
James D. O’Geary, Mayor 

 
ATTEST: 
_______________________________ 
Esther J. McCrackin, City Clerk 
Approved to Legal Form: 
________________________________ 
D. Rix Edwards, City Attorney 
 
Reference:  Minute Book 43, p 512, CAF 15-49 

 
 
 



CAF 15-66: 8 June 2015 Council Meeting: 21 May 15 Budget Work Session 
Page 1 of 20 

 

 
 
 
 
 

 
________________________________________ 

 

25 May 2015 
 

TO: The Honorable Mayor James D. O’Geary and Members of City Council 
FR: A. Ray Griffin, Jr., City Manager 
RE: CAF:  15-66 

Consideration of Approval of Resolution 15-39, Authorizing an Application for US   
Department of Justice’s 2015-2016 BJA Justice Assistance Grant  

 
 
Ladies and Gentlemen: 
 
Council Retreats Goals addressed by this item: 
 
KSO 2: To Reduce Crime and Provide for a Safe Community, and 
KSO 8: To Provide Sufficient Funds for Municipal Operations and Capital Outlay Necessary to 

  Meet the Needs of Citizens, Customers and Mandates of Regulatory Authorities; and  
 
 
Recommendation: 
 
  Approval of Resolution 15-39, Authorizing an Application for US Department of Justice’s 

2015-2016 BJA Justice Assistance Grant 
 
 
Executive Summary 
 
Chief of Police Marcus Barrow has requested the Council’s review and approval of an 
application to the US Department of Justice’s BJA Justice Assistance Grant Program for 2015 to 
fund the purchase of at least two (2) new In-Car Mobile Camera Audio/Video Recorders to 
install in two (2) marked police department vehicles currently without in-car camera units.  
 
The grant, which does not require a cash grant match, must be divided with the Vance County 
Sheriff’s Office as a “disparate jurisdiction” per Department of Justice guidelines. The full 
amount allocated by the Department of Justice is $15,994.00.  We propose to divide this 
allocation with the Sheriff’s Office in the same manner as past US Department of Justice BJA 
JAG Grants with 60% being allocated to the City of Henderson and 40% allocated to Vance 
County. Under this dispersion the City of Henderson would receive $9,596.40 and Vance County 
$6,397.60.  

City Council Action Form 
Office of City Manager 

P. O. Box 1434 
Henderson, NC  27536 

252.430.5701 

 
 
Council Meeting: 8 June 15 Regular Meeting 



CAF 15-66: 8 June 2015 Council Meeting: 21 May 15 Budget Work Session 
Page 2 of 20 

 

The US Department of Justice requires that agencies receiving funds to be divided with a 
disparate jurisdiction must complete a Memorandum of Understanding. A copy of this 
Memorandum of Understanding between the City of Henderson and Vance County is included 
and will be forwarded to the Vance County Board of Commissioners for their action, if 
approved.  
 
The grant application must be reviewed by the City Council at least thirty (30) days prior to the 
grant application being submitted to the US Department of Justice and a time for public 
comment must be provided. The grant application is due for electronic submission to the US 
Department of Justice on or before 26 June 2015. The anticipated notification date if the grant is 
accepted is 1 July 2015. The grant terms would be the same as the Federal Budget Year for 
2015-2016: October 1, 2015 to September 30, 2016.  
 
 
Attachments: 
 

1. Resolution 15-39 
2. City of Henderson “Internal Process to Decide Whether Grant Application is 

Appropriate”. 
 

 



CAF 15-66: 8 June 2015 Council Meeting: 21 May 15 Budget Work Session 
Page 3 of 20 

 

RESOLUTION 15-39 
 

A RESOLUTON AUTHORIZING THE APPLICATION FOR GRANT FUNDING FROM 
THE US DEPARTMENT OF JUSTICE BJA JUSTICE ASSISTANCE GRANT 

PROGRAM FOR 2015  
 

WHEREAS, the Henderson City Council identified eight Key Strategic Objectives (KSO) at its 2015 
Strategic Planning Retreat; and 

 
WHEREAS, two of the Key Strategic Objectives are addressed by this request as follows:  KSO 2: To 

Reduce Crime and Provide for a Safe Community, and KSO 8:  To Provide Sufficient Funds for 
Municipal Operations and Capital Outlay Necessary to Meet the Needs of Citizens, Customers 
and Mandates of Regulatory Authorities; and  

 
WHEREAS, the Henderson Police Department is the law enforcement agency with the 

responsibility for law enforcement within the City of Henderson and 
 
WHEREAS, the Henderson Police Department seeks to use sworn officers to address crime and 

disorder problems within the City more effectively and safely; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Henderson Police Department has successfully applied for and received grant 

funding for Law Enforcement purposes from the US Department of Justice BJA Justice 
Assistance Grant Program (BJA JAG) in the past, and 

 
WHEREAS, the US Department of Justice BJA Justice Assistance Grants Program has 

announced that funding applications be submitted to their program for consideration for 
funding in the 2015-2016 Federal Fiscal Year, and 

 
WHEREAS, the City of Henderson and Vance County have entered into and executed 

Memorandums of Understanding with regards to funding from the US Department of 
Justice BJA Justice Assistance Grants in the past, and 

 
WHEREAS, the City of Henderson and Vance County have agreed to disperse the funds from 

US Department of Justice BJA Justice Assistance Grant Programs in the past with 60% of 
the funding being dispersed to the City of Henderson and 40% to Vance County as a 
disparate jurisdiction, and  

 
WHEREAS, the City of Henderson has been allocated by the US Department of Justice BJA 

Justice Assistance Grants Program as eligible to apply for $15,994.00 in funding.  
 
NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED by the Henderson City Council that it does hereby 

authorize the Chief of Police of the Henderson Police Department to submit this 
application for grant funding in the amount of $15,994.00, being more fully articulated in 
Attachment A to this Resolution, and authorizes the City Manager to approve said 
Application and the Memorandum of Understanding with Vance County on behalf of the 
City (See Attachment B to this Resolution). 

 CAF 15-66 
 Attachment #1 



CAF 15-66: 8 June 2015 Council Meeting: 21 May 15 Budget Work Session 
Page 4 of 20 

 

The foregoing Resolution 15-39, upon motion of Council Member ******* and second by 
Council Member *******, and having been submitted to a roll call vote received the following 
votes and was ****** on this the __th day of ___, 2015:  YES:  NO.  ABSTAIN:  .  ABSENT:         
. 
 

_____________________________ 
 James D. O’Geary, Mayor 

ATTEST:  
       
________________________________ 
Esther J. McCrackin, City Clerk 
 
Approved as to Legal Form: 
 
______________________________ 
D. Rix Edwards, City Attorney 
Reference:  Minute Book 43,  p. ***. 
  



CAF 15-66: 8 June 2015 Council Meeting: 21 May 15 Budget Work Session 
Page 5 of 20 

 

 
  

  Resolution 15-39 
  Attachment A 



CAF 15-66: 8 June 2015 Council Meeting: 21 May 15 Budget Work Session 
Page 6 of 20 

 



CAF 15-66: 8 June 2015 Council Meeting: 21 May 15 Budget Work Session 
Page 7 of 20 

 

Description of the proposed program activities for the four (4) year period and analysis of 
need: 
 
 The Henderson Police Department and the Vance County Sheriff’s Office are applying 

jointly for the allocated funding of $15,994.00 under the BJA Justice Assistance Grant Program 

for 2015. By joint agreement of the local governing bodies of the two agencies (The City of 

Henderson City Council and the Vance County Board of Commissioners, respectively,) the 

Henderson Police Department will receive $9,596.40 in funding and $6397.60 in funding will be 

forwarded to the Vance County Sheriff’s office. This agreement has been formalized in a 

Memorandum of Understanding (MOU), a copy of which is included with this application as a 

PDF file via the Grants Management System.  

 The Henderson Police Department is requesting to use its portion of allocated funds to 

fund the purchase of at least two (2) new In-Car Mobile Camera Audio/Video Recording system. 

These cameras are used by the department to record the activities and vehicle stops of Henderson 

Police Officers in marked Police Patrol vehicles. The recording of officer’s activities is important 

to provide evidence in criminal cases, defend against improper or false claims filed against 

officers, and provide video and audio for training purposes, allowing documentation of officers’ 

activities under the Community Revitalization Initiative program. 

  The Community Revitalization Initiative (CRI) consists of a comprehensive plan of 

dealing with the high crime rates indicated in the application through specific training, analysis, 

and investigation strategies for law enforcement. It is also a comprehensive collaboration 

between law enforcement, the affected communities (through citizen's groups) and rental 

property managers, private businesses, utility providers, local media and other governmental 

agencies to help promote both prevention and intervention efforts. The City of Henderson's per 



CAF 15-66: 8 June 2015 Council Meeting: 21 May 15 Budget Work Session 
Page 8 of 20 

 

capita Part 1 crime rates are among the highest in NC and higher than many comparatively sized 

departments in the US.  

 The Vance County Sheriff’s Office is requesting to use its portion of allocated funds to 

purchase needed equipment for sworn deputies for which budgeted funds are not available. 

Funds will be used to purchase four (4) Police Rifles, ammo and equipment to be issued to Patrol 

Deputies.   

  

 

  



CAF 15-66: 8 June 2015 Council Meeting: 21 May 15 Budget Work Session 
Page 9 of 20 

 

Budget Worksheet 
 

A. Personnel    $0 
 
            Name                   Computation  Cost 
 
 
 
 
B. Fringe Benefits   $0 
 
           Name                Computation (Rate)                         Cost 
 
 
 
 
C. Travel    $0 
 

Purpose         Location      Item  Computation  Cost 
 
 
 
D. Equipment   $15,994.00 
 
 Item                               Computation  Cost 
 
In-Car Video System                          2 X $4,798.20                          $9,596.40 
Patrol Rifles and Equipment                4 X $1,300.00                         $5,200.00 
 
 
E. Supplies    $0 
 
 Supply Item                                 Computation  Cost 
 
Case .223 55gr Ammo (Duty)               3 X $311.51                          $934.53 
Case .223 55gr Ball Ammo (Training)  1 X $181.18                          $181.18 
 
 
F. Construction   $0 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 Description Computation  Cost 
 
 



CAF 15-66: 8 June 2015 Council Meeting: 21 May 15 Budget Work Session 
Page 10 of 20 

 

G. Consultants/Contracts  $0 
 
Consultant Fees 
 Name  Service  Computation               Cost  
 
 
 
 
Contracts 
 Item  Cost 
 
 
 
 
 
 
H. Other    $0 
 
 Description                        Computation               Cost 
 
 
 
 
 
Total Direct Costs   $15,994.00 
 
I. Indirect Costs 
 
 
No indirect costs are projected for this project.  
 
 
 
 
  



CAF 15-66: 8 June 2015 Council Meeting: 21 May 15 Budget Work Session 
Page 11 of 20 

 

Budget Summary Page 
 

 
A. Personnel/Salary Costs  __$0______ 
 
B.  Fringe Benefits   __$0             ______ 
 
C.  Travel    __$0            _______ 
 
D.  Equipment   __$15,994.00 
 
E.  Supplies    __$0     __________ 
 
F.  Construction   Unallowable 
 
G.  Consultants/Contracts  __$0_____________ 
 
H.  Other    __$           _________ 
 
I.  Indirect Costs   __$0_____________ 
 
 
TOTAL PROJECT COSTS  __$15,994.00    
 
 
Federal Request    __$15,994.00____ 
 

 
Applicant Funds, if any,  __$0_______ 
  to be applied to this project 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  



CAF 15-66: 8 June 2015 Council Meeting: 21 May 15 Budget Work Session 
Page 12 of 20 

 

Budget Narrative: 
 

A. Personnel 
 

No Personnel costs are requested with this budget. 
 
B. Fringe Benefits  
 
No Fringe Benefits are requested with this budget 
 
C. Travel 

 
No travel costs are requested with this budget.   
 
D. Equipment 

 
The Henderson Police Department will purchase at least two (2) new In-Car Video 

Camera/Recorder systems in order to replace two (2) old, outdated systems currently installed in 
marked patrol vehicles which are scheduled to be decommissioned. The estimated price for each 
of the designated In-Car Video Systems is $4,793.20 each.  

 
The Vance County Sheriff’s Office will purchase four (4) new Patrol Rifles, equipment and 

ammo to be issued to patrol Deputies.  
 
E. Supplies 

 
No supplies are requested with this budget 
 
F. Construction 

 
Construction expenses are not allowed under this grant. 

 
G. Consultants/Contracts 

 
There are no supply costs with this grant. 

 
H. Other 
 
There are no other costs with this grant. 

 
I. Indirect Costs 

 
 $0 
 
 



CAF 15-66: 8 June 2015 Council Meeting: 21 May 15 Budget Work Session 
Page 13 of 20 

 

All budget costs have been based on necessary purchases and reasonable costs for this project. If 
approved, all budget purchases will be made under the policies and procedures of the City of 
Henderson Finance or County of Vance Finance Department, State of North Carolina 
Department of Administration procurement rules and the guidelines of the Bureau of Justice 
Assistance and the Office of Justice Programs. All program expenditures will be reported on a 
quarterly basis both in the program’s performance measurement reports and any other required 
financial report (SF-269).  
 
  



CAF 15-66: 8 June 2015 Council Meeting: 21 May 15 Budget Work Session 
Page 14 of 20 

 

Description of the proposed program activities for the four (4) year period and analysis of 
need: 
 
 The Henderson Police Department and the Vance County Sheriff’s Office are applying 

jointly for the allocated funding of $15,994.00 under the BJA Justice Assistance Grant Program 

for 2015. By joint agreement of the local governing bodies of the two agencies (The City of 

Henderson City Council and the Vance County Board of Commissioners, respectively,) the 

Henderson Police Department will receive $9,596.40 in funding and $6397.60 in funding will be 

forwarded to the Vance County Sheriff’s office. This agreement has been formalized in a 

Memorandum of Understanding (MOU), a copy of which is included with this application as a 

PDF file via the Grants Management System.  

 The Henderson Police Department is requesting to use its portion of allocated funds to 

fund the purchase of at least two (2) new In-Car Mobile Camera Audio/Video Recording system. 

These cameras are used by the department to record the activities and vehicle stops of Henderson 

Police Officers in marked Police Patrol vehicles. The recording of officer’s activities is important 

to provide evidence in criminal cases, defend against improper or false claims filed against 

officers, and provide video and audio for training purposes, allowing documentation of officers’ 

activities under the Community Revitalization Initiative program. 

  The Community Revitalization Initiative (CRI) consists of a comprehensive plan of 

dealing with the high crime rates indicated in the application through specific training, analysis, 

and investigation strategies for law enforcement. It is also a comprehensive collaboration 

between law enforcement, the affected communities (through citizen's groups) and rental 

property managers, private businesses, utility providers, local media and other governmental 

agencies to help promote both prevention and intervention efforts. The City of Henderson's per 



CAF 15-66: 8 June 2015 Council Meeting: 21 May 15 Budget Work Session 
Page 15 of 20 

 

capita Part 1 crime rates are among the highest in NC and higher than many comparatively sized 

departments in the US.  

 The Vance County Sheriff’s Office is requesting to use its portion of allocated funds to 

purchase needed equipment for sworn deputies for which budgeted funds are not available. 

Funds will be used to purchase four (4) Police Rifles, ammo and equipment to be issued to Patrol 

Deputies.   

  

 

  



CAF 15-66: 8 June 2015 Council Meeting: 21 May 15 Budget Work Session 
Page 16 of 20 

 

The State of North Carolina 
County of Vance 
 

KNOW BY ALL THESE PRESENT 
INTER-LOCAL AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE CITY OF HENDERSON, NORTH 

CAROLINA AND THE COUNTY OF VANCE, NORTH CAROLINA 
REGARDING GMS APPLICATION NUMBER 2015-H2331-NC-DJ BJA FY 15 

EDWARD BYRNE MEMORIAL JUSTICE ASSISTANCE GRANT PROGRAM: LOCAL 
SOLICITATION FORMULA PROGRAM AWARD 

 
 

THIS AGREEMENT is made and entered into this the ____ day of _______, 2015 by and 
between the County of Vance, acting by and through its governing body, the Board of 
Commissioners, hereinafter referred to as COUNTY, and the City of Henderson, acting 
by and through its governing body, the City Council, hereinafter referred to as CITY, 
both of Vance County, State of North Carolina, wittnesseth:  

 
WHEREAS, this agreement is made under the authority of the City of Henderson and Vance 
 County to enter into cooperative agreements; and 
 
WHEREAS, each governing body, in performing the governmental functions or in paying for 
 the performance of governmental functions hereunder, shall make that performance or 
 those payments from current revenues legally available to that party; and 
 
WHEREAS, each governing body finds that the performance of this Agreement is in the best 

interest of both parties, that the undertaking will benefit the public, and that the division 
of costs fairly compensates the performing party for the services or functions under this 
agreement; and 

 
WHEREAS, the CITY agrees to provide the COUNTY $6,397.60 for the Vance County 

Sheriff’s Office from JAG award total of $15,994.00; and  
 
WHEREAS, the CITY and COUNTY believe it to be in their best interests to reallocate the JAG 
 funds.  
 
NOW THEREFORE, the CITY AND COUNTY AGREE AS FOLLOWS:  
 
SECTION 1: CITY agrees to pay COUNTY a total of $6,397.60 of JAG funds. 
 
SECTION 2: COUNTY agrees to use $6,397.60 for the Vance County Sheriff’s Office until 
September 30, 2016 or until such funds are expended. 
 
SECTION 3: Nothing in the performance of this Agreement shall impose any Liability for 
claims against COUNTY other than claims for which the Tort Laws of the State of North 
Carolina may impose liability.  

Resolution 15-39 
Attachment B 



CAF 15-66: 8 June 2015 Council Meeting: 21 May 15 Budget Work Session 
Page 17 of 20 

 

SECTION 4: Nothing in the performance of this Agreement shall impose any liability for claims 
against CITY other than claims for which the Tort Laws of the State of North Carolina may 
impose liability.  
 
SECTION 5: Each party to the agreement will be responsible for its own actions in providing 
services under this agreement and shall not be liable for any city liability that may arise from the 
furnishing of the services by the other party.  
 
SECTION 6: The parties to this Agreement do not intend for any third party to obtain a right by 
virtue of this Agreement.  
 
SECTION 7: By entering into this Agreement, the parties do not intent to create any obligations 
express or implied other than those set out herein, further, this Agreement shall not create any 
rights in any party not a signatory hereto. 
 
 
CITY OF HENDERSON, North Carolina  COUNTY OF VANCE, North Carolina 
 
__________________________________ _______________________________________ 
James D. O’Geary, Mayor    Archie B. Taylor, Jr., Chairman 
 
_________________________________ _______________________________________ 
Ed Wyatt, Interim City Manager  Robert Murphy, Interim County Manager 

 
ATTEST:     ATTEST: 
 
_________________________________ _______________________________________ 
Esther McCracken, City Clerk  Kelly H. Grissom, County Clerk 
 
Approved as to Legal Form:   Approved as to Legal Form:  
 
_________________________________ _______________________________________ 
D. Rix Edwards    Jonathan Care 
City Attorney     County Attorney 
 
  



CAF 15-66: 8 June 2015 Council Meeting: 21 May 15 Budget Work Session 
Page 18 of 20 

 

CITY OF HENDERSON 
 

INTERNAL PROCESS TO DECIDE WHETHER  
GRANT APPLICATION IS APPROPRIATE 

 
 

Department:  Police  Staff Contact:  Captain P.L. Twisdale 
 
Funding Source: Bureau of Justice Assistance J.A.G. Grants Program FY 2015 
 
Grant/Project Name: BJA JAG 2015 
 
Date Application Due:  8:00 pm EST June 26, 2015 
 
This is a  X  NEW  or   RECURRING Grant. 
 
Brief Project Summary: 
 
This grant is a new application for a new version of an annual grant. This report includes 
the details of the proposed budget. Due to the Vance County Sheriff’s Office being 
designated as a “Disparate Jurisdiction” (meaning that they were not automatically 
designated to receive funding while we were) we are required to file a joint application 
with them. The normal allocation splits done in previous years share the proceeds from 
this grant as 60% to the City and 40% to the County.  
 
The total allocation for this year is $15,994.00. The City’s portion will be $9,596.40 and 
the County $6,397.60.  
 
The Henderson Police Department is requesting to use its portion of allocated funds to 
purchase two (2) new In-Car Video Cameras to replace old obsolete units in vehicles 
being parked as stripped in the upcoming fiscal year. The BJA JAG 2015 will be fully 
utilized prior to the end of FY 2015 - 2016.  
 
The grant application requires that the City of Henderson and the County of Vance 
adopt a Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) regarding the award and distribution of 
the grant (Draft copy attached).  
 
The grant applications requires that the Grant Application be reviewed by the City 
Council and the County Commissioners and be available for review and comment by 
the public at least 30 days prior to the submission of the application. Due to the 
application deadline being 06/26/2015, we are requesting that the grant 
applications included with this request be added to the agenda for Council review 
and public comment at the 05/25/2015 Council Meeting.  
 
Maximum amount available from Funding Source: $15,994 (both City and County). 
 

 CAF 15-66 
 Attachment #2 



CAF 15-66: 8 June 2015 Council Meeting: 21 May 15 Budget Work Session 
Page 19 of 20 

 

Anticipated Award Notification Date:  08/01/2015 
 
Anticipated Grant Term:  Start Date: 09/01/2015 
    Finish Date:  06/01/2016 
 
Amount to be requested:  $15,994 (both City and County) 
 
Does the amount of the match requirement or other grant requirements necessitate City 
Council approval prior to the award?  X Yes   No 
 
Eligible types of match: This grant does not require a match.  
 
If the match is cash, where will the match come from? (Provide Account Number) 
 
This grant will not require a match. 
 
Is this project a cash award or reimbursement (or drawdown)? 
 
This project is a “drawdown” award. This project would be an advance drawdown of 
funds and would require a Grant Project Account as in past BJA JAG accounts. 
 
If this is a reimbursement grant, will funds be available?  NA 
 
Is this project included in: 
 
  Departmental Budget  No 
  Capital Improvements Plan No 
 
No. This grant was not announced until after the department had submitted its budget 
request for the FY 2015-2016 fiscal year. The grant will be set up in a separate Grant 
Project Fund and not as part of the regular budget (510). 
 
Grant funds will be used for the following: 
 
 Purchase of two (2) new In-Car Video Cameras for Marked Police Patrol 
vehicles.   
 
How will the program be funded after the grant expires?  
 
 The units will not require further funding after purchase and installation.  
 
If the department receives only a portion of the amount requested, how will the project 
be funded? 
 
The grant application is requesting the full amount for this project. 
 



CAF 15-66: 8 June 2015 Council Meeting: 21 May 15 Budget Work Session 
Page 20 of 20 

 

Some additional questions to consider: 
 
Are any other departments within the City of Henderson eligible for this funding? 
 
No.  
 
Are any other departments within the City of Henderson willing to collaborate on this 
project?  
 
This is a law enforcement project only.  
 
Will this project duplicate or compete with another service or program provided by the 
City of Henderson or other local agency?  
 
No. This is a law enforcement only grant.  
 



CAF 15-78: 8 June 2015 Council Meeting 
Page 1 of 4 

 

 
 
 
 
 

 
________________________________________ 

3 June 2015 
 

TO: The Honorable Mayor James D. O’Geary and Members of City Council 
 
FR: Edward A. Wyatt, Interim City Manager 
 
RE: CAF: 15-78 

Consideration of Approval of Resolution 15-46, Authorizing the Execution of a 
Quitclaim Deed for Property Outside City Limits Recorded in Error as Jointly Owned 
City/County Property 
 

Ladies and Gentlemen: 
 
 
Council Retreat Goals Addressed By This Item:   
 
 CV 9:(Core Values)  We value a good working relationship with the County of Vance and 

believe that by working together in a cooperative effort we can better address the strategic 
challenges and opportunities facing our community. 

 
Recommendation:   

 
 Approval of Resolution 15-46, Authorizing the Execution of a Quitclaim Deed for Property 

Outside City Limits Recorded in Error as Jointly Owned City/County Property 
 

Executive Summary: 
 
On 29 May 2015, a request was received from Porcha Brooks of the Vance County Tax Office 
regarding the execution of a quitclaim deed for a property recorded in Vance County Register of 
Deeds as owned by the City and County jointly.  This property should have been registered as 
County owned only as it is outside of city limits and not under the City’s jurisdiction. 
 
City Attorney Edwards has reviewed this quitclaim deed and found it to be in order and approves 
the execution of said deed for the property described as: Map #0325 04005; 1 acre off Highway 
39 North, Townsville, NC recorded in Book 757, Page 484 in the Vance County Registry. 
 
It is requested Council approve the execution of these quitclaim deeds as requested by Vance 
County.   
 
Attachment: 

1. Resolution 15-46 

City Council Action Form 
Office of City Manager 

P. O. Box 1434 
Henderson, NC  27536 

252.430.5701 

    
 
 
 
 
 
Council Meeting: 8 June 2015 Reg. Meeting 



CAF 15-78: 8 June 2015 Council Meeting 
Page 2 of 4 

 

RESOLUTION 15-46 
 

AUTHORIZING THE EXECUTION OF A QUITCLAIM DEED FOR 
PROPERTY OUTSIDE CITY LIMITS RECORDED IN ERROR AS 

JOINTLY OWNED CITY/COUNTY PROPERTY 
 

WHEREAS,  the Henderson City Council (Council) conducted its Annual Planning Retreat 
in January 2015, and during said Retreat identified eight Key Strategic Objectives (KSO) 
and Goals; and 

 
WHEREAS, this Resolution addresses one Core Value as follows:  CV 9: maintain a good 

working relationship with the County of Vance; and 
 
WHEREAS, a property located outside of city limits was recorded in error as owned by 

Vance County and the City of Henderson in error; and 
 
WHEREAS, Vance County has requested the City of Henderson to sign a Quitclaim Deed 

for said property to correct the records; and  
 
WHEREAS, it is Council’s desire to assist with this process as expeditiously as possible. 
 
NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED by the Henderson City Council that it does hereby 

authorize the execution of the Quitclaim Deed for the following property: Map #0325 
04005, 1 acre off Highway 39 North, Townsville, NC recorded in Book 757 Page 484 in 
the Vance County Registry (See Attachment A to this Resolution). 

   
BE IT FUTHER RESOLVED THAT the Mayor or his appointee is authorized to sign said 

Quitclaim Deeds to effect the transfer of said property to the sole ownership of the 
County of Vance. 

The foregoing Resolution 15-46, upon motion of Council Member *** and second by 
Council Member ***, and having been submitted to a roll call vote received the following 
votes and was APPROVED on this the 22nd day of June 2015:  YES:.  NO:.  ABSTAIN:.  
ABSENT:.  

    _____________________________
    James D. O’Geary, Mayor 

ATTEST: 
_____________________________   
Esther J. McCrackin, City Clerk 
 
Approved to Legal Form: 
________________________________ 
D. Rix Edwards, City Attorney 

(Reference:  Minute Book 43, p. ***; CAF 15-78) 

CAF 15-78 
Attachment #1 



CAF 15-78: 8 June 2015 Council Meeting 
Page 3 of 4 

 

 

Resolution 15-46 
Attachment A 



CAF 15-78: 8 June 2015 Council Meeting 
Page 4 of 4 

 

 



CAF 15-74: 8 June 2015 Council Meeting 
Page 1 of 3 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 

______________________________________ 
2 June 2015 

 
TO: The Honorable Mayor James D O’Geary and Members of City Council 
 
FR: Edward A. Wyatt, Interim City Manager 
 
RE: CAF:  15-74  

Consideration of Approval of Resolution 15-42, Issuing Sewer Credit for Outside Watering 
of Lawns, Plants and Vegetation for the June 1, 2015 through October 31, 2015 Billing 
Statements. 

 
Ladies and Gentlemen: 
 
 
Recommendation: 
 
 Approval of Resolution 15-42, Issuing Sewer Credit for Outside Watering of Grass, Plants 

and Vegetation for the June 1, 2015 through October 31, 2015 Billing Statements. 
 
 
Executive Summary 
 
For the past several years the City Council has authorized the issuance of sewer credits due to 
outside watering of grass, plants, and vegetation.   
 
The City Council has offered this credit in an effort to reduce the cost to the customer for such 
watering.  If this policy is adopted, the City Council does have the discretion to discontinue it 
prior to October if it is not in the City’s best interest due to drought and/or implementation of 
water conservation measures. 
 
 
Enclosures  
 

1. Resolution 15-42 

City Council Action Form 
Office of City Manager 

P. O. Box 1434 
Henderson, NC  27536 

252.430.5701 

 
 
 
 
Council Meeting:  8 June 15 Regular Meeting 



CAF 15-74: 8 June 2015 Council Meeting 
Page 2 of 3 

 

R E S O L U T I O N 
15-42 

 
ISSUING SEWER CREDITS FOR OUTSIDE WATERING OF GRASS,  

PLANTS AND VEGETATION 
 
 
WHEREAS, the City of Henderson has provided for a sewer credit to its customers for the 

period of June, July and August provided certain conditions are met, via adopting a 
“Sewer Credit Due to Outside Watering of Grass, Plants and Vegetation” on 9 June 2008;  
and 

 
WHEREAS, in the past this credit has been extended to include the months of September and 

October; and 
 
NOW, THERFORE BE IT RESOLVED BY THE HENDERSON CITY COUNCIL THAT IT 

DOES HEREBY APPROVE the Amended Policy, being more fully articulated in 
Attachment A to this Resolution, for Sewer Credit Due to Outside Watering of Grass, 
Plants and Vegetation to include the June, July, August, September and October 2015 
billing statements. 

 
The foregoing Resolution 15-42, upon motion of Council Member *** and second by Council 
Member ***, and having been submitted to a roll call vote received the following votes and was 
APPROVED on this the ** day of *** 2015:  YES: .  NO: None.  ABSTAIN:  None.  ABSENT: 
 
 

_____________________________ 
James D. O’Geary, Mayor 

ATTEST: 
 
_______________________________ 
Esther J. McCrackin, City Clerk 
 
Approved to Legal Form: 
 
________________________________ 
D. Rix Edwards, City Attorney 
 
Reference:  Minute Book **, pp. ** 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



CAF 15-74: 8 June 2015 Council Meeting 
Page 3 of 3 

 

Sewer Credit Due to Outside Watering of 
Grass, Plants and Vegetation Policy 

 
Qualifications 
 

1.  A customer whose monthly water and sewer consumption is equal to or greater than 
1.5 times the average water and sewer consumption of the preceding six months may request an 
adjustment to their sewer charges.  In no instance shall a customer who has not been on the 
system for at least six months be eligible for an adjustment. 

 
2.  The general time frame for these credits is from the June billing statement through the 

October billing statement; however the City Council shall set the time frame each year prior to 
this period and it can be for less than or more than the stated period if circumstances due to water 
restrictions or any other unforeseen emergency situations that are occurring during these months 
arise and/or it is not in the City’s best interest to allow these adjustments.  The City Council also 
has the discretion to discontinue these “watering credits for sewer” at any time. 

 
3.  After City Council approval, the Finance Director or designee shall be authorized to 

adjust the customer’s monthly sewer bill as follows: 
 

a. The customer’s average monthly water and sewer consumption for the preceding 
six months shall be established and 1.5 times that average shall be used to 
determine whether or not the customer is eligible for a sewer credit.   

b. If 1.5 times the monthly average usage is less than the usage for the month in 
question, the customer is eligible for a sewer credit. 

c. The Director of Finance (or her designee) shall be authorized to reduce the 
customer’s monthly sewer charge in question by a maximum of seventy-five (75) 
percent of the difference between the six (6) months average sewer charge and the 
monthly sewer charge in question. 

d. The customer must request this adjustment from the collections office after 
receiving the bill in question and affirm that he/she has been irrigating grass, 
plants and vegetation but in no case shall a credit be issued for more than the 
previous two months.  Failure to request this adjustment within the allotted time 
period shall result in no adjustment. 

e. This policy shall not apply to individuals that use water to fill swimming pools or 
for pressure washing. 

f. This policy shall be effective for the June – October 2015 billing statements.  
 
 
 

 

Resolution 15-42 
Attachment A 



Meetings and Events Calendar 
All Regular City Council Meetings Held 2nd & 4th Monday at 6:00 P.M. 

Date Time Event Location 

Jun 9th 6:00 PM 
FY 15-16 Proposed Budget Work Session #6 

(If Needed) 
City Council Chambers 

Jun 11th 12:00 PM 
Henderson-Vance Parks & Recreation 

Commission Meeting 
Aycock Recreation 

Center 

Jun 15th 2:30 PM Human Relations Commission Meeting City Council Chambers 

Jun 15th 6:00 PM Special Called Meeting / Budget Hearing City Council Chambers 

Jun 16th 6:00 PM 
FY 15-16 Proposed Budget Work Session  

(If Needed) 
City Council Chambers 

Jun 18th  6:00 PM 
FY 15-16 Proposed Budget Work Session  

(If Needed) 
City Council Chambers 

Jun 22nd 6:00 PM 
City Council Short Regular Meeting 
Work Session to Immediately Follow 

City Council Chambers 
 

Jul 3rd City Hall Closed Independence Day Celebration City Hall Closed 

Jul 6th 3:30 PM Henderson Planning Board Meeting City Council Chambers 

Jul 7th 3:30 PM Henderson Zoning Advisory Board Meeting City Council Chambers 

Jul 9th 12:00 PM 
Henderson-Vance Parks & Recreation 

Commission Meeting 
Aycock Recreation 

Center 

Jul 13th 5:00 PM Perry Memorial Library Advisory Board Meeting Perry Memorial Library 

Jul 13th 6:00 PM City Council Regular Meeting City Council Chambers 

Jul 14th 3:00 PM Henderson Appearance Committee City Council Chambers 

Jul 20th 2:30 PM Human Relations Commission City Council Chambers 

Jul 27th 6:00 PM 
City Council Short Regular Meeting 
Work Session to Immediately Follow 

City Council Chambers 
 

Jul 31st 10:00 AM Henderson-Vance 911 Advisory Board Meeting E-911 Operations Center

Aug 3rd 3:30 PM Henderson Planning Board Meeting City Council Chambers 

Aug 4th 3:30 PM Henderson Zoning Advisory Board Meeting City Council Chambers 

Aug 10th 9:30 AM KLRWS Advisory Board Meeting 
City Hall Large 

Conference Room 

Aug 10th 6:00 PM City Council Regular Meeting City Council Chambers 

Aug 13th 12:00 PM 
Henderson-Vance Parks & Recreation 

Commission Meeting 
Aycock Recreation 

Center 

Aug 17th 2:30 PM Human Relations Commission City Council Chambers 

Aug 24th 6:00 PM 
City Council Short Regular Meeting 
Work Session to Immediately Follow 

City Council Chambers 
 

Sept 1st 3:30 PM Henderson Zoning Advisory Board Meeting City Council Chambers 

Last Updated 3 June 2015 






















	#13 RM 8 June 2015
	CAF 15-31-A  Zoning amendment for rezoning Spring Valley Lake Rd O 15-12
	CAF 15-44  Design Standards on Solar Farms O 15-19
	CAF 15-67 Text Amendment for Solar Farms O 15-27
	CAF 15-60 Text Amendment for Other (High) Schools in I2 District O 15-05
	CAF 15-69 Chavasse Widening Project  R 15-41
	CAF 15-68 Amending Budget FY15 BA #29 O 15-29
	CAF 15-71 Closing out various grant projects O 15-31
	CAF 15-49-A  Accepting sale of old city garage
	CAF  15-66 Authorzing Application for BJA JAG 2015 Grant R 15-39
	CAF 15-78 approval of quit claim deed for County owned property R 15-46
	CAF 15-74  Outside watering sewer credit R 15-42
	Meetings and Event Calendar

